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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

~October 3, 2006

Members of the City Council:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Rohnert Park for the fiscal year 2005-2006 is
hereby submitted. This report was prepared by the Finance Department, which is responsible for both the accuracy
of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures. We believe
the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the
financial position and changes in financial position of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various
funds, and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City’s
financial affairs have been included.

This is the fifth year that the City has prepared the CAFR using the financial reporting requirements as prescribed by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements —
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. This GASB Statement requires that
management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in

the form of a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to

complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately

following the report of the independent auditors.

The CAFR is organized into three sections:

¢ The Introductory Section is intended to familiarize the reader with the organizational structure
of the City, the nature and scope of the services it provides, and the specifics of its legal
operating environment. :

* The Financial Section is prepared in accordance with the GASB 34 requirements and includes
the MD&A, the basic financial statements including notes, and the required supplementary
information. The basic financial statements include the government-wide financial statements
that present an overview of the City’s entire financial operations and the fund financial
statements that present the financial information of each of the City’s major funds, as well as
non-major governmental and fiduciary funds. Also included in this section is the independent
anditor's report on the financial statements and schedules.

¢ The Statistical Section contains comprehensive statistical data on the City’s financial,
physical, economic, social and political characteristics.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The CAFR includes the funds of the primary government, which includes several enterprise activities, as well as all
of its component units. Component units include legally separate entities for which the primary government is
financially accountable and that have substantially the same board as the City or provide services entirely to the
City. Accordingly, the Community Development Commission of the City of Rohnert Park and the Rohnert Park
Financing Authority are blended with the City. The Rohnert Park Housing Financing Authority (Authority) is
reported as a discretely presented component unit because the City is financially accountable for the Authority but
the Authority's governing body is not substantially the same as the City's and the Authority does not provide services
entirely or almost entirely to the City.




The City was incorporated in August 1962. The City has a council-manager for of government. Five persons are
elected by popular vote to serve four-year terms on the City Council. Elections are held every two years. The
Mayor is separately elected to a one-year term by members of the City Council from among the City Council
members. The Mayor acts as the presiding officer of the City Council. Policies established by the City Council are
implemented through the office of the City Manager.

Economic Condig‘ian and Outlook

The City is located in beautiful Sonoma County, approximately forty-five miles north of San Francisco. Sonoma
County’s economy has improved considerable in the past six months, with job growth about 2.5% over the previous
year. Hotel occupancy rates have risen to over 60% and room rates continue to increase. Three new Hilton Hotels
are planned to be built in three cities, one of which is Rohnert Park. The Hampton Inn is expected to be completed
by spring, 2007. '

Over the years, Sonoma County has enjoyed traditionally low unemployment rates. During the economic downturn,
the unemployment rate rose to a high of 4.9%. Since 2001, the unemployment has steadily declined and is currently
at its lowest point, 4%. During the year, Sonoma County added 3,000 jobs, with the demand for professional
services expanding due to the stabilization and growth of the County’s basic industries.

The technology, wine and tourism industries are also showing signs of i 1mprovement. The wine industry is enjoying
improved pricing power and rising exports. The County’s tonnage was up by 21% over the year 2000 and revenue
was up by 11%. The Tech-producing industry is finally stabilizing, after a few years of major layoffs and
consolidations. The forecast for telecom equipment has improved greatly from the prior year, as businesses
continue to expand both domestically and abroad. Tourism activity is good as U.S. personal income growth is
accelerating and personal income growth for the greater Bay Area continues to be strong, and

The housing market has slowed, due to both high housing prices, as well as high mortgage interest rates. Home
prices have begun to decline over the past year, with a 1.8% decline from the median home price in 2005, Non
residential construction and infrastructure construction continue to hold strong.

Retail sales in Rohnert Park increased 6.2% from the prior year primarily due to department store sales. Rohnert

. Park has a diversified business mix, which helps reduce the impact of any downturns in the economy.  As sales tax
is the largest source of revenue for the City’s General Fund, (33% of the General Fund revenues), the City is
focusing on economic development to attract new businesses and focus more on the business-to-business and
transportation segments. The City is cwrrently working on the implementation of the General Plan, which provides
for major commercial development in some of the specific plan areas.

The City has previously entered into a lease agreement with Courseco as the operator of the two municipal golf
courses. Through capital contributions from Courseco and the City, both courses were completely renovated and are
now open for full play. Due to the number of competitive private golf courses in the area, and a soft Bay Area golf
market, revenue from golf operations has been below projection. In 2005, the City modified the agresment and
reduced to base rent by $200,000 to assist the operator financially.

In summary, Soncma County’s long-term economic outlook is strong as all business sectors continue to recover
from the 2001 recession,

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the Year. In preparing the 2005-06 budget, the City kept minimum staffing levels to maintain services, lease
financed equipment and funded facility maintenance and capital equipment through grants, private
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agreements and other funds. However, even with these budget measures, the City faced a deficit due to rising PERS
rates, salary and benefit costs and worker’s comp insurance premiums. The deficit was funded through the sale of
surplus property and reserves. : :

The State, as well as the City, continues to experience budget deficits due to an economic downturn. Due to the
State’s large budget deficit, local governments received reduced funding for transportation projects and public safety
programs. The State took the second ERAF and final shift, $470,889 from the City’s motor vehicle in-lieu tax. The
following is a list of the funding received from the State of California: '

2005-0¢
Funding: : Amount
AB 3229 (COPs) $ 100,000
Jobs Housing Grant 14,457
Traffic Safety Grant - _ 27,691
DUI Grant ' . 4,153
Total State Funding for FY 2005-06 $ 146,301

The Federated Indians of the Graton Rancheria (FIGR) announced plans to build a hotel/resort/casino outside the
City limits. - The City and the FIGR entered into a Memorandum of Understanding in October 2003. The MOU
provides that the FIGR will make the following payments: :

1) $2,664,000 one-time payment to the City in lieu of development and related fees.
2) $5,000,000 per year to the City's Gieneral Fund.
“3) $1,000,000 per vear to an educational trust fund.
4)  $2,000,000 per year to a charitable foundation to support projects in the Rohnert Park community.
5)  $1,000,000 per year to the City for neighborhood and housing upgrades.
6) 17,300,000 one time payments for various capital improvements.

The MOU has a 20-year term with an automatic renewal clause. Payments will be phased in when the
hotel/resort/casino is constructed and opens. During the 2004-05 fiscal year, the FIGR purchased additional
property closer to the City limits. They intend to build the casino on this new property. The casino opening will be
delayed due to additional environmental impact studies required on the new land. The final EIR is expected to be
completed some time in 2007.

The City continued implementation of an aggressive water conservation program with the assistance of the Sonoma
County Water Agency (SCWA). In cooperation with the SCWA, the City implemented “Best Management
Practices” (BMPs) over the years to conserve water. Since 1998, the City has received about $1.3 million from
SCWA for water conservation programs. The City’s residential audit program, which residents voluntarily request
that their homes be evaluated to find ways to reduce water consumption, has been very successful. In fiscal year
2003-06, 620 homes participated in the program to determine if there were any leaks on the property, provide
efficient irrigation schedules and distribute low flow showerheads and aerators. ‘A new focus on outdoor water use
was initiated. The Large Landscape Water Conservation Program consist of notifying customers of over usage
based on their specific landscape material and ot size, providing free site visits to determine ways to save, including

effect imigation schedules, and offering rebates for improvements made based on the site visit. To date 13 sites

participated in the site visit.

Also, to encourage water conservation and in accordance with a State mandate, the City installed water meters on
all residential properties. In the past, all single-family residences in Rohnert Park were billed on a flat rate, while all
multi-family, commercial and industrial accounts were billed based on consumption. The residential water meter
project cost $2.3 million, of which $1.3 million was grant funded. A new, metered rate structure was adopted in the
Spring of 2003 that created a fixed monthly service charge and an additional consumption charge for all accounts.
The first billings with this new rate structure were mailed in October, 2003. Since implementation, the City has seen
a reduction in water usage with the new metered-rate structure. In April 2005, the City implemented a new
residential metered water rate structure aimed at water conservation. The new rate structure provides for a
discounted rate to be applied to water usage at residential properties that are able to use 10,000 gallons of water or

1-3




less per month, In 2004-05, the City began replacing all the commercial meters and installing automated radio read
equipment so that all meters can be read within three days. The commercial water meter project is expected to cost
$2.5 million and is primarily being funded through water revenue bonds. The City also spent over $1 million to
complete a new bike path and road overlays.

During the year, the City also completed the parallel sewer interceptor project, which added capacity and
strengthened the sewer line. This project was funded through the issuance of sewer revenue bonds, for a projected
total cost of $10.3 million. The City also began working on a sewer main for the Eastside, with a projected cost of
$6.5 miltion. :

The City also scrapped plans to build a new City Hall and instead will renovate an existing commercial building.
This building will be a “green” building and supports the Council’s goal of sustainability. The City anticipates
relocating to the new City Hall in the latter part of 2007. The existing City Haill will be sold as an affordable
housing site. The primary source of funding for the project will be the 1999 Certificates of Participation.

The City places a high importance on technology and information systems. The City network serves five primary
facilities: City Hall, Public Safety, Public Works, Finance Annex and the Community Center Complex. These
primary sites are linked using leased fiber-optic services. Data and voice information is run over these links and the
appropriate firewalls, routers and switches are in place. Each facility has one or more servers on-site for local
operations and all internet traffic is routed through a data center at the Finance Annex. The City uses Microsoft
Windows Operating System for the servers, desktops, notebooks and PDAs. Most of the computer equipment is
leased with a few exceptions. The City licenses software using California State Master Contracts through the
Department of General Services and their CMAS contract, The City will replace its obsolete in-house PBX
telephone system this year with a new system that is much easier to implement and administer. Plans for future
technology enhancements will include E Commerce so that customers can make payments on-line, server
virtualization to simplify system management, reduce software licensing fees and help control staffing costs and
Wifi service.

The City has a Public Safety department in which the officers perform dual roles of police and fire, which has
proven to be an extremely cost efficient way to provide these services. The focus of the department during 2005-06
was making Rohnert Park the safest city along the US 101 corridor. Additional efficers have been added to staff the
~ Special Enforcement Unit (SEU) whose primary focus is on gang and criminal activity as well as a K-9 unit for
patrol. These units are funded through the MOU with the Federated Indians of the Graton Rancheria.

For the Future. Tourism is an important industry in Sonoma County and Rohnert Park in particular. The City,
through the Community Development Commission, provides funding to both the Chamber of Commerce and the
Sonoma County Tourism: Bureau to promote tourism, as well as local interest in the City. Rohnert Park has six
hotels/motels with 8§51 available rooms. The Doubletree Hotel -provides facilities for major conventions and
meetings. This type of industry expands the City's tax base. As mentioned earlier, another hotel, the Hampton Inn,
will be completed next year. The City's Performing Arts Center attracts many people into Rohnert Park in addition
to providing the residents with quality cultural performances. The City's two 18-hole golf courses also draw many
visitors to Rohnert Park and provide an excellent golf opportunity for residents. The City is also looking forward to
the completion of Sonoma State University’s Green Music Center. The music center will provide for music and
education programs all-year round and will be a regional attraction for major indoorfoutdoor concert events.

The City is focusing on economic development to attract businesses that fill a market void and also those that
complement existing businesses. Special attention is being focused on the West Side vacant parcels for a major
retail center. Three years ago, the City ended a lease agreement with the Crushers baseball league and entered into
an option to purchase agreement with a real estate development firm for four parcels totaling forty acres, including
the stadium lands parcel. As part of the agreement with the developer, the City is removing the stadium fixtures and
demolishing the site. This area is identified as the Stadium Area Specific Plan and will be part of the general plan
implementation. ' '

One major focus of the City is the implementation of its General Plan. This Plan articulates a vision for the City that
includes an urban growth boundary correlated with a growth management program. It describes a framework of
targeted growth areas, including the creation of a City Center area anchored with a new library and city hall, the
development of a mixed use area north of the Sonoma State University to integrate with the Green Music Center, the
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development of balanced neighborhoods with a variety of housing types;, the expansion of commercial uses to the
northwest and industrial uses to the southeast, and the continued expansion of the City’s network of parks and open
space. The Plan provides for an average growth rate of 1% with an ultimate build-out of approximately 20,000.
housing units, 405 acres of commercial, office and industrial uses, 60 acres of mixed use, and 190 acres of open
space over the next twenty years. The City,’s Public Facilities Financing Plan which outlines the developer fee for
all new infrastructure, as well as a maintenance annuity fee for services. The City is also working on developer
agreements with each Specific Plan Area.

Maintenance and expansion of the community's general infrastructure (such as roads, curbs and sidewalks) remain a
strong concern for the City. The City is focusing a major effort towards economic development to maximize the
revenues created within the new Clty boundaries. A portion of these revenues will be set aside to maintain and
expand the infrastructure,

Departmental Focus. Each year the City selects a department to highlight its efforts and accomplishments. In
2005-06, the Recreation Department has been selected. The Recreation Department is an integral part of the City’s .
operation and mission.

The Recreation Department is responsible for the operation of all Recreation facilities throughout the City, as well
as the management of all programs that utilize these facilities. The Department is comprised of 7 full-time and 128
part-time or seasonal employees. Department personnel are responsible for identifying maintenance needs within
the Recreation system; maintenance is done by the Department of Public Works. Landscaping is done by an
independent contractor. The City owns two golf courses that fall under the Recreation Department, but the courses
are operated by an independent contractor under the name Foxtail Golf Club.,

- The Recreation Department operates 26 parks, five swimming pools, the City Community Centeér, two recreation

centers, the Callinan Sports and Fitness Center, and the Rohnert Park Senior Center. In addition to ensuring the
availability of these resources to the community, the Recreation Department assists the school district with the
scheduling of recreational use of many of its facilities. Over the past few years, the Department has invested in
software upgrades to manage the scheduling workload. Staff is in the process of implementing online components
of its software that will allow online scheduling requests and online payment of rental fees. The Recreation
Department has a well-camed reputation as the “Recreation Destination” of Sonoma County. The Recreation
Department works closely with youth and adult sports leagues to ensure the availability of its many fields for regular
and special competitions.

The Recreation Department offers a variety of programs to the community. The Department provides after-school
programs, summer and holiday camps, swim instruction, and many structured activities at the Senior Center.
Through independent contractors, the Department offers classes in such areas as fitness, arts and crafts, music, and
dance. The Department has observed increased interest in courses for passive activities, such as pottery and
photography. The City’s facilities are also the home of the Rohnert Park Community Band, the Community
Chorale, and other performing arts groups.

In recent years, the City has initiated several projects to renew and revitalize its Recreation infrastructure. Key
projects include the renovation of portions the Community Center, the Burton Avenue Recreation Center, and, most
recently, the Callinan Sports and Fitness Center. As part of the renovation of the Sports Center, the City purchased
state-of-the-art weight equipment, re-roofed the building, and installed photovoltaic cells intended to offset the

Center’s electricity needs. The City has also begun investing grant moneys in its parks — by the close of the fiscal

year, playground equipment in four parks will have been replaced. It is anticipated that by the end of the year, the
Recreation Department will have a comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan that will inform City staff as it seeks
to invest additional funds,

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the
assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled




timely and accurately to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America. The City’s internal controls are designed to provide reasonable,

but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) ~

the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

" Budgetary Controls. The objective of budgetary controls is to assure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council. Activities of the General, certain Special
Revenue, Enterprise Funds and Community Development Commission Capital Project funds are included in the
annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed
the appropriated amount) is established at the departmental level. The City also maintains an encumbrance
accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. All unencumbered appropriations lapse at
year-end. '

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the ﬁnancnal section of this report, the Clty continues
to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Cash Management. The following table illustrates the cash invested by the City as of June 30, 2006, by
investment type: .

Cash & Investments - June 30, 2006

Sonoma County Investment Pool $ 615,762 - 1.2%

Cash, CD’s and money market funds 18,365,542 35.0%
State Treasurer LAIF ' 18,098,219 34.5%
Government securities 15,353,080 29.3%
Total Cash & Investments $52,432,603 - 100.0%

" Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in certificates of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury,
obligations of U.S. Government Agencies, State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), Sonoma

" County Investment Pool and mutual funds. The average yield on investments at June 30, 2006 for the City was
3.696% and for the Commission 3.662%. Both the City’s and CDC’s investment performance is less than the yield
rate of 5.21% for 1 yr U.S. Treasury Bills. The same is true for the 5-year U.S. Treasury Note at a yield rate of
5.1%. While it is tempting to secure the higher yields by investing in securities that are longer term, the City holds
firm to the investment policy to have a balanced portfolio. The City adopts an investment policy anmually, which
includes the criteria for selecting investments. As in the past, the priority of the criteria has remained safety first,
then liquidity, and last, yield. All CDs are FDIC secured and the City warks with two brokerage firms to find
aftractive investment opportunities. Over the past year, interest rates have significantly improved and the City took
advantage of many short-term investments in the 5% range. Close to 40% of the Commission’s cash is from bond
proceeds that are invested in short-term treasury notes for immediate liquidity for capital spending. -

Risk Management. The City is a member of Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund (REMIF), 2 joint
powers authority composed of cities Jocated in Northern California. The City maintains coverage for property,
liability and workers’ compensation through REMIF. As of June 30, 1995, REMIF discontinued its indemnity-type
health insurance program and accordingly, the City presently contracts with Blue Cross. Other health related
employee fringe benefit programs used to be self-administered by the City and finded by the General Fund. The
City presently contracts with Delta Dental for dental benefits and V.8.P. for vision benefits. During the fiscal year,
the City received a refund of $250,126 for the liability program; however, with the rising cost of workers comp and
the amount of claims, there was no refund for the workers® compensation program this year. For 2006-07, the City’s
workers' compensation premium decreased 5.9% and the liability premium decreased 5.6%.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit. Management considers an annual audit by independent certified public accountants a sound
and prudent business practice. The accounting firm of Odenberg Ullakko Mursnishi & Co. LLP performed the
angual audit for the City during 2005-2006. The independent auditor’s report on the basic financial statemeants and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this Teport.

casily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive anaual financial teport. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The City also received a similarly
prestigious award during the same years from the California Society of Muonicipal Finance Officers {CSMFO).

A C§MEcate of Achievement is valid for a period of one yecar only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we pre
submitting it to the GFOA and CSMFO to determine its eligibility for another certificate. -

Acknewledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made
possible by the dedicated service of the cntire staff of the Finance Department, Each member of the department has

- our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the Preparation of this report,

?Hy submitted,
Stephé?g% @2
‘ City Manager
i B 5 ¥
M. Lipitz o
Direclor of Adwinistrative Services/City Treasurer
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

~ City of Rohnert Park

Cal_i'fomia' .

- For its Comprehensive Annual |
o Financial Report '
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2005

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
_ Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
. Association of the United States-and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
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October 6, 2006
To the City Council

City of Rohnert Park, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT

The Honerable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Rohnert Park, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rohnert Park, California, (the “City™)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which coilectively comprise the City™s basic financial statements, as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

and the standards for financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
. assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

v

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial positions of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and aggregate
remaining fund information of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rohnert Park at June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the
General Fund and the Pension Property Tax Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 6, 2006 on our
consideration of the City’s intemnal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering
the results of our audit. - :

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages F-3 through F-12, and the required supplementary information on
pages F-45 through F-51 are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires. We applied limited procedures, consisting primarily of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
We did not audit the information and express no opinion thereon. We applied limited procedures, consisting
primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. We did not audit the information and express no opinion thereon. .

& " Our andit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements, taken as a whole. The
combining and individual fund statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
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to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section and the statistical tables section listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Ouebery Ollatbo on acnsl s Co LLF

P
hS

o

I
N

Sy
e N a’

-

Y

£ o,

LS N N

P
N

S

\«;D i

H

. N

-
i
(SRUPI NI VO A

PN
{ LR

P
py

{

(O N S VI P e

R N N

L N

p—

w g,

/_,
R

N
L N

p—




-/

Management’s Discussior and Analysis

This section of the City of Rohnert Park’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents a narrative overview
and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our
letter of transmittal.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at the close of the 2005-2006 fiscal year by $89,838,335 (net asseis).
- Of this amount, $28,747,808 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors and $11,641,400 (unrestricted net assets) is available for business-type activities,
$5,955,759 is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net assets). For the City, $28,626,241 is invested in
capital assets, net of related debt and $14,867,127 is invested in capital assets for business-type activities.

* The government’s total net assets increased by $2,854,5422 during the fiscal year, Total cash and investments
increased by $920,694. The Housing Projects cash decreased $2.3 million due to expenditures on affordable
housing projects. Special Revenue Funds cash increased by $1.4M from revenue received for development
fees: Sewer operating cash increased by $1.8M as a result of conservation of water usage by the utility
customers. Receivables increased by $2.2M, which includes deferred housing loan fees, as well as fees paid on
behalf of the University District Specific Plan project. Restricted cash and investments decreased by $14M
million due primarily to the use of this cash for major water and sewer projects.  Capital assets increased by
$10.2M, net of accumulated depreciation due primarily to the expenditures on major water and sewer projects.
Notes and loans receivable increased $4.1M due to new housing loans for affordable housing projects. Total
liabilities increased by $248,943 due to principal payments on outstanding bonds.

¢ Asof June 30, 2006, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $41,370,646, a
net increase of $1,088,503. Approximately 61% of the combined fund balances, $25,243,544 is available to
meet the City’s current and future needs (unreserved fund balance).

‘s At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $15,225,455, or 60% of total

General Fund expenditures.

» Following the events of September 11, 2001 and the depressed economy, City’s revenues have grown at a
moderate pace, with the majority of the growth being in taxes. City-wide revenues are up $10.2 million, with
charges for services for government activities up $1.4M and for business-type activities up $3.9M. Taxes are
up $2.9M as assessed valuations continue to rise and investments are up $0.9M as interest rates rose steadily
during the year,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The
City’s basic financial statements comprise three components 1) Government-wide financial statements; 2) Furd
financial statements and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains required and other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of City finances,
in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

‘The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference

between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as revenues pertaining to uncollected taxes and
expenses pertaining to eamed but unused vacation and sick leave.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities} from other functions that are intended to recover
all or in part a portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type dctivities). The governmental
activities of the City include general govemnment, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, and other. The
business-type activities of the City include water operations, sewer operations and refuse collection operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but
also legally separate entities, the Community Development Commission of the City of Rohnert Park (the
Commission), the Rohnert Park Financing Authority (the Financing Authority), and the Rohnert Park Housing
Financing Authority (the Housing Financing Authority), for which the City is financially accountable. Included
within the govemmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are the operations of the
Commission and the Financing Authority. The Housing Financing Authority is reported separately from the
financial information presented for the primary government, :

Fund Financial Statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts, which are used
to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives, The City, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance.
All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds. proprietary funds and

fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
determining what financial resources are available in the near future to finance the City’s programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing deécisions. Both the govemmental funds balance
sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. '

- The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (special revenue, debt
service, capital prOJects and permanent funds). Information is presented separately in the governmental funds
balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for
the General Fund; Commission’s Capital Projects Fund and Housing Projects Fund; Financing Authority; Special
Assessments Debt Service Fund; and the City Capital Projects Fund; all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into 2 single, agprepated presentation entitled “other
governmental funds”. Individual and combining fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is
provided as supplementary information elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers — either outside
customers, or internal units of departments of the City. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as
shown in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The City maintains the following two
types of proprietary funds: :

*  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-

wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the water, sewer, and refuse co]lectlon .

operaticns.

& Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for certain City programs
and activities. The City uses an internal service fund to account for information systems services. Because
these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included
within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. The City’s
private-purpose trust fund is reported under the fiduciary funds. Since the resources of this fund are not available to
support the City’s own programs, it is not reflected in the government-wide financial statements, The accounting
used for the private-purpose trust fund is much like that used for proprietary funds.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The required supplementary information includes the City’s General Fund budgetary comparison schedule. The
City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, and a budgetary comparison schedule has been
provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following table represents a comparative analysis of the net assets of governmental and business-type activities

- for the years ending June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005:

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2006 _
Governmenial Activities Business-type Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Cumrent and other assets $ 46,190,574 5 43802952 % 24,000,405 § 33,584,721 3 70,190,983 § 77,387,673
Capital assets, net 57,715,138 58,418,752 24676840 13,673,051 82,391,978 72,091,803
. Total assets 103,905,712 102,221,704 43,677,249 47,25_7,772 152,582,961 149,479,476
Current and other liabilities 3,151,806 2,404,594 2,280,737 2,532,048 5,432,543 4,936,642
Long-term liabilities 37,424,098 37.461,298 19,887,985 20,097,743 57,312,083 57,559,041
Total liabilities 40,575,904 39,865,852 22,168,722 22,629,791 - 62,744,626 62,495,683
Net assets: : :
Invested in capital assats,
net of related debt 28,626,241 30,487,238 14,867,127 16,741 255 43,493,368 47,228 493
Resiricted 5,955,759 . 8,551,078 - - 5,955,759 8,551,078
Unrestrtcted 28,747,808 23,317,496. 11,641,400 - 7,886,726 40,389,208 31,204.229
Total pet assets $ 63329808 $ 62355812 % . 26508527 § 24627981 §$ 89838335 $ 86,983,793

Analysis of Net Assefs — As noted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. For the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $89.8 million at the close of the current fiscal year. Total assets
increased by $3.1 million during the year. This is comprised of a decrease in current assets by $7.2 million and an
increase in capital assets by $10.3 million. Cash and investments increased by $0.9M. Housing Projects cash
decreased $2.3 million due to expenditures on affordable housing projects. Special Revenue Funds cash increased
by $1.4M from revenue received for development fees. Sewer operating cash increased by $1.8M as a result of
conservation of water usage by the utility customers. Overall cash, including restricted cash, decreased by $13.1
miilion as bond proceeds were spent on major capital water and sewer projects. Capital assets increased by $10.3
million, net of accumulated depreciation. Notes and loans receivable mcreased $4.2 million due to new housmg
loans. :

A portion of the City’s net assets (45%) represents unrestricted net assets of $40.4 million, which may be used to
meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Another significant portion of the City’s net assets is the $43.5 million (48%) that reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g. land and easements, structures-and improvements, infrastructure, and equipment), less any related debt

.used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;

consequently, these assets are nof available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets
is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets of $6 million (7%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reported positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for
the City as a whole; as well as for its separate governmental activities. For business-type activities, the City reported
a positive balance of $11.6 million in unrestricted net assets.
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The following table indicates the comparative changes in net assets for governmental and business-type activities for
fiscal year June 30, 2006 and 2005: A

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

i,

\43?}

£y
4
Gover | Activitics Business-type Activities Totzl .
7006 2005 2006 2003 2006 2005 {3
Revenues: My
Program reventes: 5
Charges for services $ 6110520 0§ 4651889 0§ 21085175 0§ 17255544 S 2TI06095 5 21907433 .
Operating grants and L9
contributions 2,719,200 2,234,947 - - 2,719,200 2,234,947 P
Capital grants and LA
contributions 546,563 514,534 1,186,735 1,028,338 1,733,208 1,542,872 o~
General rvenues; " "'_j
Propety taxes 15,504,905 13,810,450 - - 15,504,905 13,810,490 { }
Franchise taxes 1,308,839 1,263,721 - - - 1,308,839 1,263,721 N
Other taxes 1,855,821 931,074 - - 1,855,821 931,04 £ "}
Contributions not restricted to
specific programs; f }
Sales taxes allocation from i
Stre 7,386,925 6,953,204 - - 7,386,925 6,953,294 £
Motor vehicle license ’ -
fees 2,572,107 2,804,619 - - : 2,572,107 2,804,619 {3
. Rental income - - - - - -
Investment income 1,671,623 1,064,234 586,583 263,349 2,258,206 1,327,583
Other 1,100,814 914,079 - - 1,109,814 - 974,079
‘Total reveaues 40,786,717 ' 35,202,881 22,858,493 18,547,231 63,645,210 53,750,112 i
General povernment 11,455,704 11,762,224 11,455,704 11762224 - 7N
Public safety 16,703,386 15,087,248 16,703,386 15,087,248 . \ . }
Public works 4,220,758 4,408,673 4,220,758 4,408,673 e ~
Parks and recreation 4,167,196 3,968,774 4,167,196 3,968,774 i
Other 1,504,207 . 1,415,055 1,504,207 1,411,055 =
Intercst on long-tenn debt 2,038,944 2,060,965 2,038,944 2,060,965 }
Water . - 6,454,568 5,650,092 6,454,568 5,650,002 ~
Sewer _ - - 9,697,231 8,851,312 9,697,231 8351372 i
Refuse collection - - - 4,548,674 4,321,260 4,548,674 4,321,260 o
Total expenses 40,090,195 38,608,93¢ 20,700473 18,822,724 60,790,668 57,521,663 -
Ty
Excess (deficioncy) before transfirs. 696,522 ©(3406058) 2,158,020 (275,493) 2,354,542 (3,771,551) *\{J ‘
Transfers | 27747 (238,760) (271,474) 238,760 - -
Change in net assets _ 973,996 (3,734,818) 1,880,546 (36,733) 2,854,542 (3,771,551} | %
Net assets, beginning of year 62,355,812 66,090,630 24,627,981 24,664,714 86,983,793 90,755,344 P
Net assets, end of year $ 63329808 § 62355812 5 26508527 § 24627981 5 89838335 8 86983,793 t g

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $973,996 as explained below.
Key elements of the change in net assets are as follows:

*  Property taxes increased by $1,694,415 as a result of a 7.8% increase in the property tax assessment. Housing
prices in Sonoma County leveled off during the year and demand for housing has begun to decline.

» Sales taxes rose by $433,631 or 6.2% as major retailers continue to see strong sales growth. Franchise taxes
increased by $45,118, or 3.6%. Motor vehicle license fees {classified as contributions not restricted to specific

programs) decreased $232,512 or 8.3%, as a refund of prior year license fees of $723K was received by the . /\/
State in the prior year. ) oy
*  Charges for services increased $1,459,031 or 31.4%, primarily due to a reclassification of performing arts P
center revenue from operating grants to charges for services ($592,955), as well as an increasing in zoning and PN
engineering fees and an increase in development fee revenue. . _ ( g




Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

* . Operating grants and contributions decreased by $484,253, primarily due to the reclassification of performing
arts center revenue to charges for services.

» The City's overall investment earnings increased $607,389 or 57.1% during the year. Interest rates steadily
increased through the year, The Housing Project fund also received $52,270 in deferred interest on a new
housing loan.

+ Tota] expenses increased by $1,391,256 or 3.6% as a result of rising costs in salaries and benefits, additional
personnel, and increased expenditures for capital projects.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $1,880,546. Key factors of this
increase are as follows:

» The water department net assets increased by $199,920 as revenue from operations exceeded expenditures.
Revenue from operations increased by $1,473,046 due to an increase in water rates. Expenses increased by
$639,140 from the prior year.

*  The sewer depariment net assets increased by $1,505,677 as revenues increased $1,552,834 due to an increase
in sewer rates and expenses for the sewer operation increased $308,272 due to increased cost of the subregional
sewer system. The sewer department also received $1,062,538 in capital contributions from developer fees for
capital expansion projects.

»  Therefuse collection net assets increased by $174,949. This increase was due an increase in the refuse rates.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses find accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. :

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the

~City’s financial requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a

government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental funds
reported by the City include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital Project Funds

" and the Permanent Fund.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$41,370,646, an increase of $1,088,503 in comparison with the prior year. $25,243,544 of this total amount
constitutes wnreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’s discretion. The remainder of fund
balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because: 1) it reflects fund equity in assets
that are long-term in nature and thus, do not represent available spendable resources ($10,087,121); 2) it is restricted
for housing projects ($538,502); 3) it is restricted for street projects ($1,282,579); 4) it is restricted to pay debt
service ($2,869,827); 5) it represents prepaid items and other assets ($84,222), and 6) it represents an endowment, of
which the principal may not be spent ($1,264,851).

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, revenues for government functions overall totaled $39,092,213,‘whiie
expenditures totaled $41,056,512. Expenditures from governmental functions exceeded revenues by approximately
$1,964,299,

. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund

balance of the General Fund was $15,225,455 while total fund balance was $18,030,830. As a measure of the
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 60% of total General Fund expenditures of $25,499,733,
while total fund balance represents 71% of that same amount,




Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The fund balance in the City’s General Fund decreased by $298,172 during the fiscal year, primarily due to
expenditures outpacing revenues. The City’s General Fund property tax collections increased by approximately
14.2% during the fiscal year related to growth in assessed values of real and personal property, as well as growth in
supplemental property tax revenues. Sales tax grew 6.2% as sales continue to be strong. Intergovernmental revenue
decreased by 6.6% primarily due a reimbursement of $723,000 that was received in the prior fiscal year from the
State for the prior year loss of MVLF backfill. The sale of surplus assets contributed $621,704 to the General Fund.
Expenditures increased $1,119,125, most of which was attributable to increases in salaries and benefits. Overall, the
General Fund’s performance resulted in expenditures in excess of revenues in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 of
about $0.3 million, which indicates that while the economy is slowly beginning to recover, expenditures are still at a
higher pace.

The Capital Projects fund balance increased by $991,523 as cash and investments increased from additional tax
increment revenue. The Housing Fund balance increased by $1,764,942 as there were a few new major housing
loans for affordable housing projects. The Financing Authority fund balance decreased by $1,333,252 as cash from
bonds proceeds was spent on the new City Hall project. The Special Assessments Debt Service fund balance

decreased by $7,790. The City Capital Projects fund balance decreased by $965,950 total revenue declined from the -

previous year.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of mformatlon found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

At the end of the fiscal year, the unrestricted net assets for the water operation were $4,162,273, the sewer operation
$6,943,306, and the refuse collection $535,819.

The total increase in net assets for proprietary funds was $1,880,546. Factors concerning the finances. of these
funds have been addressed previously in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities. -

Fiduciary funds. The City’s fiduciary operations consist of the Special Enforcement Unit — South (Private-purpose
Trust Fund) The Special Enforcement Unit ~ South accounts for assets seized by the Department of Public Safety.
Net assets in the Special Enforcement Unit — Scuth Fund increased by $31 202.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
There were no amendments to the 2005-06 budget. Highlighis of the budget are:

~»  Total operating revenues were budgeted at $21.6 million, about $1.1 million higher than the 2004-05 budget.
Some revenue projections, like taxes, were increased based on sales tax consultant’s estimates and assessed
property valuations; however, other revenue projections, like recreation revenues and interest earnings were
reduced to reflect the current economic climate. Investment income and recreation revenues were reduced
based on current and projected economic conditions. Revenue performance was favorable to budget by
approximately $909,515 with taxes, investment eamnings, planning and engineering fees exceeding budget
expectations. Recreation, Performing Arts Revenue and golf course revenue was below budget as an indication
of the weak economy. Most other revenues were close to budget.

e Total expenditures (excluding enterprise fund and Community Development Commission allocations) were
budgeted at $26.6 million, an increase of $2.2 million over the previous year’s budget. There were increases in
the budget categories of costs for salary and benefits due to salary increases, additional personnel and increased
premiums for health and workers comp insurance. Total expenditures were under budget by $1.1M for the
fiscal year, primarily due to capital items not being purchased as the City did not receive a budgeted Federal

. FEMA grant.

e Total reserves were budgeted to decrease by $2.5 million with expenditures exceeding revenues. Specifically,
the General Fund Reserve was budgeted to decrease by $1.6 million; the General Fund Endowment Reserve
was budgeted to decrease by $0.3million; the Self-Insured Losses Reserve was budgeted to ‘decrease by
$260,000; the Capital Replacement Reserve was budgeted to decrease by $225,953; the Infrastructure Reserve
was budgeted to decrease by $75,000. There were some minor budgeted changes in the other reserves.
However, with revenues exceeding budget expectations and expenditures $1M below budget, total reserves had
a slight increase of $17,037 at the end of the fiscal year.
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- Management’s Discassion and Analysis, Continued

5 CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
J '
Capital assets
The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2006,
amounted to $82,391,978 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land and
easements, infrastructure, structures and improvements, equipment, and construction in progress. Major capital
asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
¢  For government activities, construction in progress increased by a net of $2,808,208 due in part to the stari of
several new projects: City Hall (81.5M); Recreation Center roof replacement ($601,086) amd other
miscellaneous projects. In total, $4.5M was spent on open projects, while $1.3 million of completed projects
were transferred to structures and improvements. During the year, the City transferred $548,955 for design of a
new city hall, $559,251 for road improvements and a few miscellancous projects totaling $177,287 were
transferred to strictures and improvements.
s For business—type activities, construction in progress increased by a net of $11.4 million, due primarily to
opening and continuance of a few major water and sewer projects, the commercial water meter retrofit (30.7
million), the parallel sewer interceptor project ($10.2 million) and the Eastside Sewer Project ($1 million).
During the year, the City completed a few smaller water and sewer projects, totaling $447,273.
For government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets were from acquisition date to
the end of the current fiscal year, Governmental fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
expenditures.
Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate changes from the
prior year:
= ‘ Increase/
/,, - Governmental activities Business-type activities Total (Decrease)
e ) Percent
2006 2005 2006 2005 © 2006 2005 of Change
Land and easements § 2,948,157 $ 2943157 $ - 3 - § 2,948,157 § 2,948,157 0.0%
Infrastructure,
structures and -
improvements 106,362,391 105,965,817 21,636,370 21,446,331 127,998,761 127,412,148 0.5%
Equipment 13,053,356 12,717,325 1,865,056 1,495,131 14,918,412 14,212,456 5.0%
Construction in
progress 6,454,882 3,260,232 14,821,185 3,390,195 21,276,067 6,670,427 219.0%
Accumulated depreciation (71,103,648) (66,492,779} (13,645771)  (12.658,606)  (B4,749419)  (79,151385) = 1.1%
Total § 57,715,138 § 58418752 b 24,676;840 $ 13,673,051 $ 82,391 978 $ 72,091 803 14.3%

The City’s infrastructure assets are recorded at historical cost in the government-wide financial statements as
required by GASB Statement No. 34,

Additional information about the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 to the financial statements.
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Debt Administration s
:/ s ,—\%\

At June 30, 2006, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $56,081,881, excluding compensated absences, R ;:
which was comprised of $23,831,799 of certificates of participation, $22,962,075 of tax allocation bends, $600,356 L

of special assessment bonds, $6,660,264 of water revenue bonds and $2,027,387 of capital leases. Long-term debt
decreased by $432,188 due to reduction on the special assessment bends, certificates of participation and tax

allocation bonds from scheduled retirement of debt. In the tax allocation bonds category, retirement of debt was ("}
partially offset by accretion of interest on capital appreciation bonds. r;ii-%?
L
The City’s Crdinance imposes a limit on the amount of general obligation bonds the City can have outstanding at £%
any give time. As of June 30, 2006, the City’s debt limit {15% of assessed valuation) was $535 rmlllon At June 30, ) -
2006, the City did not have any debt applicable to the limit outstanding. { 3
£y
NP
Increase/
Governmental activities Business-type activities Total (Decrease) %
Percent PN
2006 2008 2006 2005 2006 2005 of Change S
7y
" Special assessment «}
bonds, net of deferred £
loss on refinding 5 600,356 $ 881,289 $ - 5 - $ 600,356 § 881,289  31.9% L
Certificates of ’ %
participation 4,265,000 4,405,000 13,227,720 13,235,332 17,492,720 17,640,332 -0.8% 7
Lease revenue refunding ‘ i :?
bonds including discount o
and deferred loss on L
refunding 6,339,079 6,532,861 - - 6,339,079 6,532,861  -3.0% o
Tax llocation bonds, A
including accretion, £
premium and deferred , i
loss on refunding 22,962,075 23,112,192 : 22,962,075 23,112,192 -.6% i . }9
Water revenue bonds, . h
net of discount - - 6,660,264 6,862,411 6,660,264 6,862,411  2.9%
Capital leases 2,027,387 1,484,984 - 2,027,387 1484984 36.5%
Total 236193897 336416326, _$19867.9%4 520007743 SJGOR1.881 _$56514.060 08%

Additional information about the City’s long-term obligations can be found in Note 7 to the financial statements.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

¢ The economy of Sonoma County is expanding at its strongest pace since the 2001 recession, with industrial
production expanding well above average. The unemployment rate is at its lowest point since late 2001 at 4%.
One of Sonoma County’s strongest basic industries, travel and tourism, has improved considerably over the past
two years. Hotel occupancy rates have risen to over 60% and room rates have increased steadily over the last
year, with an increased demand for higher-end hotels. Personal income growth in the San Francisco Bay Area
will lead to increased spending on tourism in Sonoma County. Also, U.S. personal income growth is
accelerating and corporate profits continue to improve. This will have a positive impact on leisure and
corporate travel.

¢ The wine industry’s outlook is continuing to improve. Wine consumption has rebounded and shipments of
. high-end and medium-priced wines from California are rising, reflecting firmer consumer demand. This also
makes winery visits and wine-related tourism more popular. The high-tech sector is finally stabilizing after four
years of major layoffs. The forecast for telecom equipment has improved greatly from last year. The driving
indicator for growth in this sector is continued rapid pace of business investment spending both domestically
and abroad.

¢ The housing market in Sonoma County has finally calmed down, with home prices declining 1.8% from the
2005 median. However, construction permits has not slowed, but in fact risen over the past year, focused more
on nonresidential and infrastructure construction.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

*  The retail sector in Rohnert Park experienced a 6.2% rise in sales, which was mostly attributable to department
store sales. The City’s diversified business mix helps weather any downturns in the economy, but the City
would like to focus more on the business-to-business and transportation segments. As sales tax is the largest
source of revenue for the Rohnert Park General Fund (33%), the City is focusing on economic development to
attract new bustness. The City is currently working on implementation of the General Plan, which provides for
development of specific plan areas. Some of these areas will be commercial developments that will generate
additional sales tax dollars. The 2006-07 sales tax projection includes moderate growth in the sales tax base as
new restaurants and retailers are anticipated to open doors during the year.

-®  As stated above, the tourism industry in the County is recovering moderately through renewed support by the
local leisure traveler and the business traveler. For the City, the transient occupancy tax has been increasing
steadily over the past few years and finally rose above the 2001 peak year in 2005-06. The City will soon have
an additional hotel, the Hampton Inn, which is scheduled for completion sometime in the spring of 2007.

® Inorder to bring General Fund expenditures in line with revenues, the City reduced the workforce in July 2003
by thirty positions. Some of these positions were vacant, however, other positions were eliminated through
employees accepting the “Golden Handshake™ and retiring early or through involuntary layoffs. These changes .
reduced expenditures by $2.5 million. The 2004-05 budget added one position that is funded by the General
Fund and four additional public safety positions that are funded by 2 memorandum of understanding with the
Federated Indians of the Graton Rancheria for a special enforcement unit to address heightened criminal
activity. The City did approve the enhancement of both the Public Safety and Miscellaneous PERS retirement
plans to be implemented July 1, 2007. The combined annual cost of both of these plans is $1.4 million, which
will be funded through new revenues from the Westside developments, as well as increased revenues from taxes
as the economy continues to improve. For 2005-06, the City added two management analyst positions and a
Community Development Director to handle the increased activity in implementing the General Plan. The
2006-07 authorizes the addition of two positions in a new department, Fire Prevention, that will be funded
through the fire prevention fees. The budget also authorizes an Assistant City Engineer to assist with the
projects related to the implementation of the General plan. This position will be funded through development
fees. Also authorized is an equipment mechanic to assist the one sole mechanic with maintenance of the City’s

- fleet. :

* Expenditures in the area of capital outlay or non-routine facility maintenance will either be funded through the
General Fund on a critical needs basis, or through outside sources such as grants or donations. All other major
equipment or maintenance projects will be postponed until the City’s financial condition improves.

*  During the year, the major freeway running through Sonoma County was widened, which greatly improved the
traffic flow. The second phase of this expansion is currently underway, which extends the widening for another
few miles. Another important milestone is that commercial airline service is returning to Sonoma County with
a commitment by Horizon Air to begin service in early 2007 to Los Angeles and Seattle. It is hoped that other
major commercial carriers will also add service in Santa Rosa. :

*  The State’s “Triple Flip” measures for both sales tax and motor vehicle license fees had a minor impact on sales
tax, but reduced MVLF by about $0.5 million. The ERAF shift for MVLF will continue for one more year in
2005-06, with an additional $0.5 million impact. In 2005-06, the City received the MVLF “backfill” as
promised by the State, The amount received was $723,000. '

* Because of the City’s strong financial performance in 2005-06, the City’s only had to use about $250,000 from
its General Fund Reserve. The City estimates a shortfall of about $2.8M in 2006-07, which will be covered
through the sale of surplus land. The City is hopeful that through the development of the General Plan’s
specific plan areas, as well as continued improvement in the local economy, revenues will be closer to matching
expenditures, ‘ :

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for fiscal year 2007,
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Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors and creditors with a

P

general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or \
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Administrative Services, P.O. “7
~ Box 1489, Rohnert Park, CA 94927-1489. (“) |
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Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report regarding the di-scretely presented component
unit, the Housing Financing Authority, or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Treasurer,
P.O. Box 1489, Rohnert Park, CA 94927-1489.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

™y STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
J JUNE 30, 2006
Primary Government Component Unit
Business- Housing
Governmental type Financing
Activities Activities Total Authority
ASSETS )
Cash and investments $  23,779.800 § 8,753,528 32,533,418 % 55,759
Receivables 4,645,867 4,004,621 8,740,488 -
Prepaid items and other assets 84,222 84,222
Restricted cash and investments 9,191,625 10,616,448 19,808,073
Special assessments receivable 340,000 - 340,000
Notes and loans receivable 7,660,121 - 7,660,121
Deferred costs of issuance 488,849 535,812 1,024,661
Capital assets: - -
Nondepreciable assets 9,403,039 14,821,185 24,224,224
Depreciable assets, net of accumulated depreciation 48,312,099 9,855,655 58,167,754
103,905,712 48,677,249 152,582,961 55,759
LIABILITIES
Accournts payable 1,321,842 1,192,828 2,514,670 -
Accrued Habilities 321,597 - 321,597 -
Deposits 448,013 575,530 1,023,543 -
Unearned revenue 608,772 397 471 1,006,243 -
Interest payable - 451,582 114,908 566,490
Long-term liabilities: ' -
Due within one year 2,309,439 444 758 2,754,197
Due in more than one year 35,114,659 19,443,227 54,557,886
i "\3 Total labilities 40,575,904 22,168,722 62,744,626 -
A
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 28,626,241 14,867,127 43,493,368 -
Restricted for:
" Housing projects 538,502 - 538,502 -
Street projects 1,282,579 - 1,282,579 -
Debt service 2,869,827 - 2,869,827 -
Performing Arts Center Endowment 1,264,851 - 1,264,851 -
Unrestricted 28,747,808 11,641,400 40,389,208 55,759
Total net assets $ 63,329,808 § 26,508,527 80,838,335 § 55,759

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK g
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES { ™ ’“}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 L .
O
Program Revenues
' L
Operating Capttal )
Charges for Grants and Grants and -
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions £ ‘?
FUNCTION/PROGRAM ACTIVITIES: s
Primary government: { }
Governmental activities: f“a
General government $ 11455704 § 1,476,260 5 1,156,600 3% 50,453 8
Public safety 16,703,386 450,057 279,726 !
Public works 4,220,758 2,542,293 374,396 496,110 1
Parks and recreation 4,167,196 1,640,881 14,457 £y
Other 1,504,207 1,429 894,021 e
Interest on long-term debt 2,038,944 : < }
Total governmental activities 40,090,195 6,110,920 2,719,200 546,563 Ty
L
Business-type activities: . P
Water 6,454,568 6,406,197 - 124,197 L
Sewer 9,697,231 9,955,355 - 1,062,538 s ";
Refuse Collection 4,548,674 4,723,623 - - b
£
Total business-type activities 20,700,473 21,085,175 - 1,186,735 {,J
Total primary government $ 60,790,668 $ 27196095 § 2,719,200 § 1,733,208 O
Component unit: - _
Hausing Financing Authority 3 11,000 % - $ - 3 -
Generat revenues: ) \\
Property taxes ) -,
Franchise laxes ) R
Other taxes (“;
State contributions not restricted to specific programs: s
Sales taxes £ }
~ Motor vehicle license fees i )
Rental income ik
Invesunent income o
Gain on sale of capial assets L
Transfers £
Total general revenues and transfers .
%7

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Change in net assets

Net asseis, beginning of year
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Ng:t_ assets, end of year
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government Component Unit
Business- Housing
Governmental type Financing
Activities Activities Total Authority
$ (8,772,391) % - (8,772,391) -
(15,973,603) (15,973,603) -
(807,959) {807,959} -
{2,511,858) (2,511,858) -
(608,757} (608,757) -
(2,038,944) (2,038,944) -
(30,713,512} - (30,713,512) -
75,826 75,826 -
- 1,320,662 1,320,662 -
- 174,949 174,949 -
- 1,571,437 1,571,437 -
(30,713,512} 1,571,437 {29,142,075) -
(11,090)
15,504,905 - 15,504,905 -
1,308.839 - 1,308,839 -
1,855,821 - 1,855,821 -
7,386,925 - 7,386,925 -
2,572,107 - 2,572,107 -
1,671,623 586,583 2,258,206 721
1,109814 - 1,109,814 -
277474 (277,474) - -
31,687,508 309,109 31,996,617 721
973,996 1,880,546 2,854,542 {10,369)
62,355812 24,627,981 86,083,793 66,128
5 63,329808 8 26,508,527 89,838,335 35,759
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
Ty RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE

______ )9' GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2006
Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 41,370,646

Amounts reported for governmental activitics in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 57,709,623

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
management of centralized data processing services and related billings to
other City departments and individual funds. The assets and liabilities are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 5,515

Long-term receivables and interest on deferred loans are not available
to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred 1,630,855
on the modified accrual basis.

Costs of issuance are capitalized on the government-wide statement of net assets,
whereas, they are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 488,849

Interest payable on long-term debt that does not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, interest payable is not accrued as a
liability in the balance sheet of governmental funds. (451,582} -

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
-'"“\i in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmentzl

j funds.

* Special assessment bonds, net 3 (600,356)
Certificates of participation (4,265,000)
Lease revenue bonds (6,339,079)
Tax allocation bonds, net {including '
accreted interest) (22,962,075}
Capital leases (2,027,387
Compensated absences {1,230,201) {37,424,008)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 63,329,808

See accompanying notes to the basic financial satements.
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CITY OF ROENERT PARK

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2006

Net change in fund balances - total governmenta! funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
stztement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. Bowever, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense

Capital asset-additions, reported as capital autlay
Basis in capital assets sold
Depreciation

Revenues recognized in the governmental funds that were carned and recognized in
previous years and reported as beginning net assets in the satement of activities.
Revenues earned in the current year that did not meet the revenue recognition
criteria for governmental funds are reported as revenues in the statement of
activities.

Long-term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. Repayment of bond prircipal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term {iabilities in
the statement of net assets.

Lease proceeds
~ Principal repayments:
Tax allocation bonds
Centificates of participation
Special assessment bonds
Capital leases’

Some expenses reported in the statement of activitics do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
* expendimeres in governmental funds.
Amortization of deferred costs of issuance
Change in accrued interest payable
Amortization of premium, discount and deferred amount on reﬁmdmg
Interest accretion on capital appreciation bonds
Change in long-term compensated absences

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual fonds. The net loss of the internal
service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

5,431,947
(846,890)

(5,284,884)

(313,524)

965,000
365,000
260,000
276,221

(45,963)
13,180
(52,184)

(802,984) -
(185,229)

3

1,088,503

(699,827)

584,690

1,077,597

(1,073,180

{3,787

973,996
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK (}
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS o P A
PROPRIETARY FUNDS \ ) ,-;5
JUNE 34, 2006 : T ey
Governmental £
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activity 7
Refuse - Internal F
‘Water Sewer Coltection Total - Service £
ASSETS LA
Current assels: iy
Cash and investments: . . S
Operating 3 3,198,363 § 5211441 § 343,722 § 8,753,528 % - {%
Held for capital improvements 3,134,221 6,920,618 - 10,054,839 - o
Deposits 46,748 475,904 38,957 561,609 - 3
Towal cash and investments 6,379,334 12,607,963 382,679 19,369,976 - '
§ 3
Accounts receivable 1,383,337 2,035,580 675,704 4,094,621 .- /i
Total current assets 7,762,671 14,643,543 1,058,383 23,464,597 . - L /é
Noncurrent assets: ' : (}
Deferred costs of issuance 196,854 338,958 - 535,812 - {
Capital assets: K‘}
Lznd, strucrures and improvements 13,307,754 8,585,849 - 21,893,603 - o
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 045,648 662,175 - 1,607,823 146,643 S
Construction in progress 3,234,926 11,586,258 - 14,821,184 - £
Total capital assets 17,488,328 20,834,282 - 38,322,610 146,643 S
Less: accurnulated depreciation (7,459,434) (6,186,336) - {13,645,770) {141,128} F“; ‘
h.
Net capital assets - 10,028,894 14,647,946 . 24,676,840 - 5,515 o
Total noncurrent assets 10,225,748 14,986,904 - 25,212,652 5,515 L
Total assets 17,988,419 29,630,447 1,058,383 48,677,249 5,515 Oy
LIARILITIES \f sy
Cuirent liabilities: ’ e
Accoums payable - 399,500 307,576 485,752 1,192,828 - ey
Interest payable 66,293 48,615 . 114,908 . g
Deeposits 66,675 472,043 36,812 575,530 - £
. Deferred revenue 73,665 323,806 397,471 -
Bonds payable 207,146 237,612 - 444,758 - ] ‘i :
Total current liabilities 813,279 1,389,652 522,564 2,725,495 ‘ - Yy |
Noncurrent liabilities: _ R
Bonds payable 6,453,119 12,990,108 - 19,443,227 - "
Total liahilities 7,266,398 14,379,760 522,564 22,168,722 -
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,559,746 8,307,381 - 14,867,121 5,515
Unrestricied - 4,162,275 6,943,306 535,819 11,641,400 -
Total net assets 3 10,722,021 § 15,250,687 $& 535,819 $ 26,508,527 § 3,515
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

STATEMENT OF REVEN'UES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2086

OPERATING REVENUES:
Ulility service charges
Charges for services
Penalties and other

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Contractual services
Rent and leases
Payroll and related costs
Heat, light and power
Other
Depreciation
Repairs, operations and mainienance
Professional services
Supplies

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
Interest expense

" Total nonoperating revenues {(expenses)

INCOME (1.OSS) BEFORE
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Capital contributions
Transfers In
“Transfers out

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activity
Refuse Internal
Water Sewer Collection Total Service
3 6350176 § 9,871,324 3§ 4,676,939 § 20,898,439 -
- - - . 404,368
56,021 84,031 46,684 186,736 -
5,406,197 9,955,355 4,723,623 21,085,175 404,368
2,258,576 52,326 4,544,321 6,855,223 -
8,912 7,167,421 - 7,176,333 -
2,015,423 1,055,531 - 3,070,954 -
161,497 62,635 .- 224,132 -
376,17 265,081 1,806 643,058 -
699,206 287,959 - 987,165 4,992
325,444 111,610 - 437,054 403,163
207,063 85,337 2.547 294,947 -
127,082 24,075 - 151,157 -
6,179,374 9,111,975 4,548,674 19,840,023 408,155
226,823 843,380 174,949 1,245,152 3,787)
244,009 - 342,574 - 586,583 -
(275,194) (585,256) - {860,450) -
(31,185 (242,682) - (273,867) -
195,638 600,698 174,949 971,285 (3,787)
124,197 1,062,538 - 1,186,735 -
7,861 - 7,861 -
(121,776) (157,559) - (285,335) -
199,920 1,505,677 174,949 1,880,546 (3,787
10,522,101 13,745,010 360,870 24,627,981 9,302
$ 10,722,021 $ 15,250,687  § 535,819 § 26,508,527 5,515

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
‘Transfers in
Transfers out
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing aciivities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Long-term bomowings
Costs of issvance
Paymient on capital debt
interest paid on capital debt
Acquisition of capital assets
Contributions from developers and other agencies
Net cash provided by {used in) capital and
refated financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR ’
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, -
END OF YEAR
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES,
Operaling income/(loss)
Adjustments te reconcile operating income(loss)
to nét cash provided by (used in) operauing activities:
Depreciation
Chanpes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deposits
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activites

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Governmenta)
Business-{ype Activities - Enterprise Funds Activity
Refuse : " Internal
Water Sewer Collection Total
6,123,718 § 9,886,543 . § 4,669,688 3 20,679949 § 404,368
(3,390.117) (8,474,7173) {4,604,358) (16,469,248} (403,163)
(2.315,423) {1,055,531) - (3.070,954) -
718,178 356,238 65,330 1,139,747 1,205
7,861 - - 1.861 -
(127,776) {157,559 - {285,335) -
{119,915) (157,559 - {277,474) -
10,252 11,330 21,582
(202,1405) (7,612) - (209,758} .
(261,313 (583,365) - (844,678) -
(2,361,810) (9.629,144) - {11,990,954) (1,205)
124,197 1,062,538 - 1,186,735 -
{2,690,8209 {9,146,253) - {(11,837,073) {1,205)
244,009 342,574 - 586,583 -
(1,848,548) (8,604,999} 65,330 (10,388,217 -
8,227,882 21,212,952 317,349 29,758,193 -
6,379,334 3 12,607.963 % 382,67 § 19369976 § -
26823 % 843,380 % 174,949 3% ' 1,245,152 § (3,787)
699,206 * 287,959 . 987,165 4,992
(359,458} (407,249) (58,780) (825,487 -
74,628 (706,288) (55,684) (687,344) -
3,314 14,631 4,845 22,790 -
73,665 323,806 397,471 -
718,178 3§ 356,239 3§ 65,330 3 1,139,747 § 1,203
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND
SPECIAL ENFORCEMENT UNIT - SOUTH
JUNE 30, 2006

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

‘Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. -

35,353

35,353

19,017

16,336




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND

SPECIAL ENFORCEMENT UNIT - SOUTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

D e e

7
™y
_;
y
wJ
—y
s

7
7

ADDITIONS
Seizures and forfeitures $ 36,065

P A g,

p)

N

DEDUCTIONS
Law enforcement costs (4,863)

S

X

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 31,202

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT): :
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (14,866)

END OF YEAR ’ $ 16,336

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAY. YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of the Reporting Entity - The basic financial statements of the City of Rohnert Park, California (City),
include the financial activities of the City (the primary government) and its component units. The component units
discussed below are included in the City’s reporting entity beeause of the significance of their operational or
financial relationship with the City. The blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the City’s operations and so data from these units is combined with data of the pnmary
government. The discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column in the
basic financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the primary government, The City’s blended and
discretely presented component units have June 30 year-ends.

Blended Component Units - The Cormunity Development Commission of the City of Rohnert Park (Commission)
was established under the provisions of the State of California Community Redevelopment Law to assist in the
rehabilitation of areas determined to be in a declining condition in the City. The Commissicn is governed by a board
consisting of all the members of the City Council.

The Rohnert Park Financing Authority (Financing Authority) is a joint powers authority, organized pursuant to a
joint exercise of powers agreement (Agreement), dated as of January 1, 1999, between the City and the Commission.
The Agreement was entered into pursuant to the Government Code of the State of California, commencing with
Section 6500. The Financing Authority is a separate entify constituting a public instrumentality of the State of

- California and was formed for the public purpose of assisting in financing activities for the benefit of the City and

the Commission. The Financing Authority is governed by a board consisting of all the members of the City Council.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The Rohnert Park Housing Financing Authority (Housing Financing
Authority) was established to assist in financing the acquisition, opcratlon and maintenance of mobile home parks in
the City in order to provide affordable housing and stimulate economic development. The City Council has the
responsibility to appoint all directors of the Authority, which is governed by a board consisting of a minimum of
three directors, and has the ability to remove appointed directors at will.

Component unit financial statements can be obtained from the Finance Department of the City at 6800 Hunter
Drive, Suite B, Rohnert Park, CA 94928.

Description of Joint Powers Participation - The City participates in a joint powers activity through a formally
organized and separate entity. The financial activities of the Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund are not

included in the basic financial statements of the City as it is administered by a board that is separate from and
independent of the City.
Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements - The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information

.about the primary government (City) and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of

the overall govemment, except for fiduciary activities, Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities
of the City and between the City and its discretely presented component unit. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and inter-govemnmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees charged to external parties.




The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment
of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and; therefore, are clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues include 1) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by
the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
a particular program. Revenues that are not cla551ﬁcd 4§ program revenues, mcludmg all taxes, are presented
instead as general revenues.

Fund Finangial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including
fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary — are presented. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. Govermnment resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental and enterprise funds are separately aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

s  General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial resources traditionally
associated with governments, which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.

e Community Development Commission Capital Projects Fund accounts for redevelopmcnt of designated

areas within the approved project area of the City.

¢ Community Development Commission Housing Projects Fund accounts for 20% of tax increment revénues,
which are designated by law to increase or improve low and moderate income housing in the designated
areas w1th1n the approved project area of the City. -

= TFinancing Authority Fund accounts for capital items financed by certificates of participation.

* Special Assessments Debt Service Fund accumulates monies for payment of 1915 Act special assessment
bonds. Financing is provided by special assessment taxes.

¢ ity Capital Projects Fund accounts for resources used for the acquisition of capital facilities, except for
those capital facilities financed by enterprise funds, special assessment resources or Community
Development Commission resources.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

¢ Water Fund accounts for water production to the residents of the City. The activities neéessary to provide
such service are accounted for in the fund, including, but not limited to, operations, maintenance, financing
and related debt service, and biliing and collection.

+ Sewer Fund accounts for sewage disposal to the residents of the City. The activities necessary to provide
such service are accounted for in the fund, including, but not limited to, operations, maintenance, financing
and related debt service, and billing and collection.

» Refuse Collection Fund accounts for service performed by an independent contractor. The activities
necessary to provide such service are accounted.for in the fund, mcludmg but not limited to contractual
services and billing and collection services.
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The City reports the following additional fund types:

* Permanent Fund (a govemmental fund type} accounts for accumulation of capital donated for the Clty of

Rohnert Park’s Dorothy Rohnert Spreckels Performing Arts Center. The interest generated from the
donations will be used for the cperations of the Performing Arts Center while the corpus is permanently
restricted.

® Internal Service Fund (a proprietary fund type) accounts for the activities of centralized data processing

services and the related billings to other City departments and funds.

+ Special Enforcement Unit - South Private-purpose Trust Fund (a fiduciary fund type) accounts for assets

held by the City in a trustee capacity for the benefit of law enforcement agencies in the region.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and -
reported in the basic financial statements. The accounting and financial reportmg treatment applied to a fund is

determined by its measurement focus. All govemnmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources

measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included

on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing

sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. When both restricted and

unrestricted net assets are available, unrestricted resources are used only after the restricted resources are depleted.

The government-wide, proprietary and private-purpose trust fund financial statements are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associited with
the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. Opcratmg statements of these funds present
increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net assets.

¢ - Governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. The City considers property
taxes as available if they are levied and collected within 60 days after year-end. The availability period for
all other revenues susceptible to accrual is also 60 days. Revenues considered susceptible to accrual include
property taxes, sales tax, licenses, interest and rentals, charges for services and intergovernmental revenues.
All other revenues are recognized only when the cash receipts are collected. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred, except that principal and interest on general long-term debt,
compensated absences and claims are recognized when due.

¢ Proprietary funds and the private-purpose trust fund are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Water,
sewer and refuse collection service revenues earmned at June 30, but unbilled, are recognized.

For the business type activities in the govemnment-wide statemnents and proprietary fund financial statements,
the City has elected under GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, to apply all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as any applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB), the Accounting Principles Board or any Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before
November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The
GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards, which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations),
constitutes accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for
governmental units, The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector gnidance of FASB after
November 30, 1989 for its business type activities in the government-wide or enterprise fund financial
statements,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise and internal service funds are charges
for customer services including: water, sewer and refuse collection, and service support charges. Operating
cxpenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not mcetmg this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.




Long-term Governmental Capital Assets and Liabilities - GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the
presentation of account groups, but provides for these records to be maintained and incorporates the
information into the governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets.

Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The proprietary funds "deposits" in the City
cash and investments pool are, in substance, demand deposits and are therefore considered cash equivalents.

" Investments — Investment transaciions are recorded on the trade date. Investments in nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts (certificates of deposits and guaranteed investment contracts) are reported at cost, and
all other investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is defined as the amount that the City could reasonably
expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and seller and is generally measured by
quoted market prices. '

Transactions with Joint Powers - Premiums paid to the Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund are recorded as
expenditures of the General Fund and expenses in the statement of activities. Dividends received are recorded as a
reduction of expenditures/expenses.

Bond Discounts. Premiums, Issuance Costs, and Deferred Amounts on Refundings - For governmental fund
financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs are recognized during the period the
bonds are issued. Bonds issued are reported as other financing sources including any applicable premiums.
Discounts are reported as a separate financing use. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. For government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges.

Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings, are deferred and amortized into expense for both business-type
. activities and proprietary funds. For governmental activities, they are deferred and amortized into expense if they
occurred subsequent to June 30, 2001. Bonds payable are reported net of deferred amounts on refundings.

Prepaid items — Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to fiture accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fumd financial statements.

Capital Assets - are valued at historical cost or, for donated capital assets, at their fair market value on the date
donated. Capital assets include public domain (infrastructure) general capital assets consisting of certain
improvement including roads, bridges, water/sewer, lighting system, drainage systems, and flood control. The City
defines capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of one year and a value of $1,000 or more.
Capital assets used in operations are depreciated or amortized (assets under capital lcases) using the straight-line
method over the lesser of the capital lease period or their estimated useful lives in the govemmcnt-w:de and
proprietary fund financial statements. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Primary Government
Infrastructure 30 years
Structures and improvements 35 years
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 35 years

Accurmulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay - It is the policy of the City to permit employees to accumulate eamed
but unused vacation and sick Jeave benefits. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as long-
term liabilities on the statement of net assets. If amounts are due and payable at fiscal year-end, they are recorded as
liabilities in the governmental funds.

Claims Tiabilities - The City has accrued for claim liabilities including estimated clalms incurred but not yet
reported and related allocated loss adjustment expenses. :
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Property Tax Levy, Collection and Maximum Rates - The State of California Constitution Article XIIIA provides

that the combined maximum property tax rate on any given property may not exceed one percent of its assessed
value unless an additional amount for debt or assessments has been approved by voters. Assessed value is
calculated at 100% of market value as defined by Article XIIA and may be increased no more than two percent per
year unless the property is sold, transferred or improved. The State Legislature has determined the method of
distribution of receipts from a one percent tax levy among the counties, cities, school dxstncts and other districts.
Sonoma County assesses properties, bills for and collects property taxes as follows:

Secured Unsecured
Lien dates January 1 January 1
Leﬁy dates July 1 - Julyl
Due dates 50% on November 1 July 1
50% on February 1
Delinquent after - December 10 {for Noveirber) August 31

April 10 (for February)

The term “unsecured” refers to taxes on personal property other than fand and buildings. Secured taxes are secured
by liens on the property being taxed.

Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied.

Interfund Transactions - Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or
transfers. Loans and residual balances outstanding in the fund financial statements are reported as receivables and
payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation and are referred to as either “due to/from
other funds” (e.g., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (e.g., the noncurrent
portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Advances
to other funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable

- governmenita] funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not available financial resources.

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related
cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental
or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation.

In November 2003, GASB issued Statement Ne. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impaivment of Capital
Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for
impairment of capital assets. A capital asset is considered impaired when its service utility has declined significantly
and unexpectedly. This statement also clarifies and establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries.

- 'This statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2006,

In May 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section—an
amendment of NCGA Statement 1. This statemeni amends the portions of NCGA Statement 1, Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Principles, that guide the preparation of the statistical section. The statistical
section presents detailed information, typically in ten-year trends, that assists users in utilizing the basic financial
statements, notes to basic financial statements, and required supplementary information to assess the economic
condition of a government. This statement adds new information that financial statement users have identified as
important and eliminates certain previous requirements. This statement is effective for the City’s fi scal year ended
June 30, 2006.




In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should account
for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other nonpension benefits.
Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment benefits, or OPEB. The statement
generally reguires that employers account for and report the annual cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations

and commitments related to OPEB in essentially the same manner as they currently do for pensions. Annual OPEB |

cost for most employers will be based on actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on an ongoing basis, generally
would provide sufficient resources to pay benefits as they come due, This statement’s provisions may be applied

- prospectively and do not require governments to fund their OPEB plans. An employer may establish its OPEB
liability at zero as of the beginning of the initial year of implementation; however, the unfunded actuarial liability is
required to be amortized over future periods. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements for
information about the plans in which an employer participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation
process and assumptions, and, for certain employers, the extent to which the plan has been fundcd over time. This
statement is effective for the Cify’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2009

In December 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation — an amendment

of GASB Statement No. 34, which requires that limitation on the use of net assets imposed by enabling legislation be

reported as restricted net assets, This statement clarifies that a legally enforceable enabling legisiation restriction is
one that a party external to a govemment-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary-can compel a
government to honor. This statement also specifies the accounting and financial reporting requirements if new
enabling legislation replaces existing enabling legislation or if legal enforceability is reevaluated. ' Finally, this
statement requires governments to disclose the portion of total net assets that is restricted by enabling legislation.
Application of this statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2006,

In June 2005, GASB issued Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, which establishes accounting
standards for termination benefits. More specifically, this statement requires employers to disclose a description of
the termination benefit arrangement, the cost of the termination benefits (required in the period in which the
employer becomes obligated if that information is not otherwise identifiable from information displayed on the face
of the financial statements, and significant methods and assumptions used to determine termination benefits
provided through an existing defined benefit OPEB plan, the provisions of this Statement will be implemented
simultaneously with the requirements of Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-
employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. For all other termination benefits, application of this statement is
effective for the City’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Fund Deficits '

At June 30, 2006, the City Capital Projects fund had a deficit fund balance of $1,103,989 due to capital expendxtures
exceeding its revenues and beginning fund balance. The deficit will be reimbursed in the future by the gas tax fund,
developer fees, State and Federal grants and bonds proceeds.
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investments pool that is available for use by all funds, except the Community
Development Commission and the Housing Financing Authority. In addition, cash is separately held by several of
the City's funds. Cash and investments are comprised of the following amounts as shown on the financial
statements; )

. Primary government:

Unrestricted - § 32,533,418
Restricted 19,308, 07_3
Component unit (HFA) - Deposits 55,759
Private-purpose Trust Fund 35,353
Total cash and investments _S_iZ.ﬂZ.Z..ﬁ.QL‘ ; -
Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to
it. At June 30, 2006 the carrying value of the City’s deposits and cash on hand was $7,073,779. At June 30, 2006
the carrying value of the component unit’s deposits was $55,759. The City and component unit are not exposed to
such risks as all deposits are insured or collaterahzed

Investments

Investments permitted by the City’s investment policy include the following:

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF),

Sonoma County Investment Pool,

Securities of the United States Government or its agencies, ‘
Certificates of deposits with commercial banks, savings & loan companies or credit unions,
Negotiable certificates of deposits,

Bankers” acceptances,

Mutual funds invested in United Staies Government securities,

United States Government and agency investments are required to be of the highest rating available at the time of
purchase. Certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances and savings type accounts must -be fully insured or
collateralized.

Credit risk
Credit risk relates to the possibility that an issuer/counterparty to an investment will be unable to fulfill its
obligations.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investmerit.
The City has an investment policy of lengthening its maturities when rates are falling and shortening its maturities
when rates are rising as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses and to take advantage of advantageous
interest rates. Since interest rates are not anticipated to drop any further, the City has about 78% of its investments
in maturities of less than 1 year in order to take advantage of anticipated rising interest rates.

As of June 30, 2006, the City’s investments, excluding the Housing Financing Authority consisted of the following:




Maturities
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 year 1-5 years Credit Rating
Federal Home Loan Banks § 13,385,270 3 - $ 13,385,270 Aaa
Federal National Mortgage Association 1,967,810 - 1,967,810 Ana
State Local Agency Investment Fund 16,701,607 - 16,701,607 - Not rated
Sonema County Investment Pool 615,762 - 615,762 Not rated
Money market finds 12.632.616 12632616 - AAAm

$__ 45303 065 3 29,334,223 3. 15,968,842

As of June 30, 2006, the City’s investment in LAIF was $16,701,607, which has a weighted average maturity of 153 '

days The total amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF at that date is approximately $16.4 billion. The
City’s proportionate share of structured notes and asset-backed securities held by the LAIF was $428,730 or 2.567%
of the City’s investment in LAIF. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for

LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute. The value of the peol shares in LAIF .

that may be withdrawn is determined on an amortized cost basis, which is different from the fair value of the City’s
position in the pool. The City’s investments in LAIF is unrated.

As. of June 30, 2006, the City’s investment in the County’s Pool was $615,762, which has a weighted average
maturity of 344 days. The total amount invested by the County’s Pool at that date is approximately $1.5 billion. The
County’s Pool is subject to regulatory oversight by the Treasury Oversight Committee, as required by California
Government Code Section 27134. The value of the pool shares in the County Pool that may be withdrawn is
determined on an amortized cost basis, which is different from the fair value of the City’s position in the pool. The
City’s investment in the County Pool is unrated.

Concentration of credit risk _

The City’s investment policy does not place restrictions within the permitted categories of investment that may be
entered into and how much may be held by individual issuers. More than 5% of the City’s investments are invested
" in Federal Home Loan Bank (29.5%) and Blackrock Provident Institutional Funds (12.7%).

4. NOTES AND LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Commission extends various developer loans, first-time homebuyer loans, and rehabilitation loans to property
owners for the rehabilitation and improvements of commercial buildings and residential homes, and other loans for
families and individuals of low/moderate income. The Commission has a secured interest in the properties for
which the loans were made. As management believes that the Commission’s secured interest adequately covers its
value in the loans, there has been no provision made for bad debt and, accordingly, notes and loans receivable are
recorded at the net realizable value.

3. DEFERRED REVENUE
Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with unearned revenue and receivables for revenues not

considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental and Enterprise funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned,
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) At June 30, 2006, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported were as follows:
' Unavailable Uniarned
Governimental activities:
Major fimds:
Special assessments receivable $ 340000 0§ -
Due from govemimental agencies 138,676 -
Building permit fees on housing loan 153,758
Courseco Loan 280811
Parks and recreation and other advances - 266,122
Housing loans 74,518 203,280
Nonomajor firds:
Advances fiomproperty owners - " 49,370
Traffic Congestion Relief finding due from State 315,591
Public Facilities Finance Fees on housing loan 318,501
Total govemmental activities $ 1,630,855 $ 608,772
Business-type activities:
Water cormection fees on housing loans $ 73,665
Sewer cormection fees on housing loans 323,806
Total Business-type activities $ 397471

— 6. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Receivables/Payables - The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2006 was as follows:

Fund reporting receivable Fund reportihg payable Amount
Due to/from other funds:
General Fund City Capital Projects Fund 3 1,071,528
CDC Capital Projects Fund 4,791
CDC Housing Fund 4,791
CDBC Housing Projects Fund CIDC Capital Projects Fund 54,869
3 1,135,979
Advances (o/firom other funds: )
General Fund CDC Capital Projects Fund 3 2427000

The General Fund loaned $4,200,000 to the Community Development Commission Capital Projects Fund to
construct the Rohnert Park Performing Arts Center. The loan bears interest at a rate of 9 percent per annum. At
June 30, 2006, the outstanding balance remaining on this loan is $2,427,000. The General Fund funded certain City
capital projects up front for a total of $1,071,528 and will be reimbursed as payments are received. The set-aside
amount of $54,869 was the Housing Projects Funds® share of the property tax increment received in July.




Interfund Transfers - The composition of interfund transfers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 was as
follows:

_Fund Reporting Transfer In Fund Reporting Transfer Out Amount
General Fund CDC Capital Projects Fund $ 5,166 ¢
CDC Housing Projects Fund 83,546 a
City Capital Projects Fund 9,685 ¢
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,980,758 d
Water Enterprise Fund (1) 14,373 ¢
Sewer Enterprise Fund (1) 9,583 ¢
Water Enterprise Fund (1) 113,403 f
Sewer Enterprise Fund (1) 147,976
CDC Housing Projects Fund CDC Capital Projects Fund 2,203,638 b
Financing Authority Fund General Fund g 400,154 ¢ -
CDC Capital Projects Fund 444,913 ¢
City Capital Projects fund General Fund 361,147 ¢
Financing Authority Fund 1,478,217 ¢
Nonmajor governmental funds | 324,709 ¢
Water Enterprise Fund (1) City Capital Projects Fund 7.861 ¢
Nonmajor governmental funds General Fund 360,187 ¢
CDC Capital Projects Fund 1,114,152 e
CDC Housing Projects Fund 194,067 ¢
Taotal $ 92535335

) Net amount reported as transfers between governmental and business-type activities in the government-
wide statement of activities, and the remaining transfers are eliminated.

The purpose for the interfund transfers at June 30, 2006 are as follows:

a) This transfer was to reimburse the General Fund for 85% of the salary and benefits of the Housing
Manager

b} This transfer represents 20% of the tax increment earned for the year ended June 30, 2006 which is

required to be set aside in a separate fund to provide adequate housing for families and individuals )

with low or moderate income.
¢) These transfers represent reimbursement of capital project costs.
d) This transfer is to repay the General Fund for programs funded through other sources.
e} These transfers are made for the payment of debt service.

f) The General Fund transferred interest earnings to the proprietary funds during the year.
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J 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

=

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:

G } activiti
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being
depreciated
Infrastructure, structures
. and Bnprovements
Equipment
Total capital assets,
being depreciated
Less accurmilared
deprecation for:
Infrastructure, structures
and improvements
Equipment

Total pecurmalated
- depreciation
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, netl

Gavernmental activities
capital assets, net

\\ )
io:n/)

Business-{ype activities
Capital assels, nok being
depreciated:
Construction in progress

Capital assets, being
deprecipied:
Structures and
improvements
Equipment
Todal capital assets,
being depreciated
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Stntciures and
improvemnents
Equipment
Total accumulated
depreciation
Total capital assets, being
deprecialed, net

Busioess-type activities
capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July |, 2005 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2006
s 2,948,157 3 - 3 - 3 - 5 2,948,157
3,280,232 4,460,143 (1,285,493) 6,454,882
6,228,389 4,460,143 - {1.285,493) 9,403,039
105,965,817 - (888.919) 1,285,493 106,362,391
12,717,325 973,009 (636,978} - 13,053,356
118,683,142 973,009 {1,525,897) 1,285,493 119,415,747
(57,169,060) (4,133,070) 86,344 - {61,215,786)
(9,323.719) {1,156,206) 592,663 - (9,387 867)
(66,492,779) (5,289,876) 679,007 - (71,103,648)
52,190,363 {4,316,86T) (846,890) 1285493 48,312,009
5 848752 3 143276 § (345800} _§ - 5 57715038
$ 3300095 © $ 11878263 S - $ (447273) S 14821185
21,446,331 - 180,039 21,636,370
1,495,131 112,691 - 257234 1,865 056
22941463 112,691 - 447373 23,501,426
(11,755,947) (875,075) . - (12,631,022)
{902,659} {112,050) - - (1,014,749)
(12,658,606) (987,165} - - (13,645.771)
10,282,856 (374,474) - 441273 9,855,655
S 13673051 § 11003789  $ - s . $ 24675840




Construction in progress for governmental activities at June 30, 2006 is comprised of the following:

Anthorization June 30,2006 Unexpended

City Projects:

City Hall Project $ 3,100,000 $ 1,561,350 § 1,538,650

Water Supply Assessment Project 1,232,000 518,491 713,509

University District Specific Plan N/A 460,853 NA

Various other projects 19,364,192 3,010,565 16,353,627
Community Development Commission Projects:

SW Blvd. Fire Station Renovation 85,000 27,812 57,188

Stadium Lands Salvage Project 375,000 203,357 171,643

BARC Roof Replacement 600,000 601,086 (1,086)

West-side Public Safety Facility 5,140,000 48,622 5,091,378

Various other projects 750,000 22,746 727,254

Total 3 30,646,192 5 6454882 24,652,163

During the year the City transferred $548,955 for completion of the city hall from construction in progress to
infrastructure. The City also transferred $559,251 far 2004 road improvements project to infrastructure. Alsa,
during the year the City completed a few other projects totaling $177,287 that were transferred from construction in

progress to improvements.

Construction in progress for business-type activities at June 30, 2006 is comprised of the following:

Project Expendedto - Project Funds

Authorization June 30, 2006 Unexpended
Commercial Water Meter Retrofit Project 8 3300000 3 761267 % 2,538,733
Paratlel Sewer Interceptor Project 10,300,000 10,215,960 84,040
Esstside Sewer Project ' 6,558,600 1,062,216 5,496,384
Various other projects 17,510,000 2,781,742 14,728,258
$ 14821185 § 22847415

Total 3 37,668,600

Depreciation expense was charged to povernmental functions as foilows:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Parks and recreation

Other

Depreciation on capital assets held by the City’s internal service fund is charged 1o the various
functions based on their usage of the assets.

Total depreciation expense — governmental functions

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type functions as follows:

Water
Sewer

Total depreciation expense ~ business-type functions

3 82,613
1,260,909
2,378,927
1,291,939

270,4%

— 492

L2 280.876,

$ 699,206

959
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7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The City’s long-term debt payable at June 30, 2006 follows:

Governmenal Activities
(a) Special Assessment Debt with
Governmental Commitment:
2001 Consolidated Reassessment 2002- 2009  2.90-4.45% $165,000-330,000 5 1,825000 § 620,000
" {b) 1991 Tax Allocation Refunding Ronds:
Redevelopment Project (includes accreted interest) 20022020 5.90-6.80% 485,000-965,000 13,099,895 39917
(b} 1999 Tax Allocation Bonds: :
Redevelopment Project (includes accreted interest) 2002-2036  3.60-5.30% 285,000-260,389 11,936,651 13,352,135
1<) 1999 Certificates of Participation:
Capital Facilities Project 20022025 3.60-4.60% 125,000-330,000 5,055,000 4,265,000
-(€) 2003 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds:
Master Equipment Lease Project and Public Saftty Fadlity 20032035 2.50-4.80% 240,000-470,600 6,950,000 6,485,000
{c) 2001 Tax Allocation Bonds: .
Redevelopment Project 002 -2016  3.50-4.60% 55,000-775,000 £,200,000 6,980,000
(e) Capital leases 2002-2020  Verious Various Various 2,027,387
Total Governmentat Activities 36,479,439

Business-Type Activities

{f) 2002 Reveaue Bonds 200§-2023  2.004.50% 80,000-145,000 2,090,000 1,845,000
(d) 2005 Sewer System Revenue Certificates of Participation

Capital Facilities Preject 2005-2036  3.00-5.00% 230,000-775,000 13,000,000- 13,000,000 -
(f) 2005 Water Revenue Bonds 2005-2030  2.50-4.50% 120,000-305,000 5,000,000 4,830,000

Total govermmnental and business-type activities — bonds, certificates of participation, ) )
SN . capital leases, and accreted interest on capital appreciation bonds B 36,204,430

N

Debt service payments, as listed in the table above, are general]y made from the following sources:
{a) Speclal assessment collections recorded in the Special Assessments Debt Service Fund. The City is
“obligated in some manner” (as defined by GASB No. 6) for speclal assessment debt because it must cover
delinquencies of special assessments bonds in excess of debt service reserves with other resources until
foreclosure proceeds are received or because it has indicated that it may do so.

(b) Property tax increment allocated to the Community Development Commission Capital Projects Fund.

{c) Lease revenues from the General Fund, as provided for by an agreement between the Financing Authonty
and the City.

(d) 75% Utility billing from the Sewer Department and 25% from new development.
(¢) General revenues of the City.

(f) Utility billing from the Water department.




v
The following is a summary of changes to long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2006: N
S
. : Amount due P
Balance Additions/ Balance Within One \j%
July 1, 2005 Accretions Retirements . June 30, 2006 Year Py
K3 o
L

Governmental activities:

Special assessment bonds . $ 910,000 S - $ 290,000 § 620000 280,000 \3
Certificates of participation 4,405,000 - 140,000 4,265,000 150,000 .
Lease revenue refunding bonds 6,710,000 - 225,000 6,485,000 230,000 [
Tax allocation bonds 18,475,947 - 611,415. 17,864,532 611,868 .
Capital leases 1,484,984 818,624 - 276,221 2,027,387 249,650 87
Accreted interest on capital -,
appreciation bonds 4,768,121 802,984 353,585 5,217,520 168,132 »
Total long-term debt . 36,754,052 1,621,608 1,896,221 36,479,439 1,889,650 ( “}g
Original issue premium _ 86,012 - 7,760 78252 7,760 P
Original issue discount (26,014) - {1,301) (24,713} (1,301) K
Deferred amount on refunding . (397,724) {58,643) {339,081} {58,643) &,
Compensated absences 1,044,972 1,049,363 364,134 1,230,201 471,973 (N
Total povermmental activities § 37,461,258 3 2,670,971 s 2,708,171 5 37,424,098 $ 2,309,439 ; }
Business-type activities: . .
Water revenue bonds $ 6,930,000 H - H 205,000 s 6,725,000 H 210,000 ] }
Sewer revenue certificates of panticipation 13,000,000 - . - ' . 13,000,000 230,000 .

Original issue premium 235,332 - 7,612 227,720 7,612 { }

Original issue discount {657,589) - (2,854) {64,735) (2.854) o
: £y

Total business-type activities $ 20,097,743 5 - H 209,758 § 19387985  § 444,758 L

o £y
Nt

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. £y

Future debt service requirements (principal and interest) for governmental activities are as follows: N
Fiscal Year ending Special Assessment ) Lease Revenue Bonds Centificates of Participation Tax Allocation Bonds ._"
Accreted
. June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principat Interest Principal Interest Interest / 5
2007 § 280000 $ 2096 § 230,000 § 262,181 § 150,000 § 198370 S  61LB5? S 378,882 § 368,132 B
2008 190,000 11,390 235,000 256,369 155,000 192,420 603,415 : 363,410 386,585 :
2009 150,000 3,672 240,000 250,431 164,000 186,120 613,993 ) 346,848 396,007
20010 - - 245,000 243,756 165,000 179,538 * 617,092 329,158 407,908 :\;
2018 - - 255,000 236,129 175,000 172,480 465,355 479,275 579,645 S
2012 -2016 - - 1,410,000 1,037,758 985,000 738,478 3,988,895 2,338,958 1,421,104 ?
2017-2021 - - 1,720,000 717,883 1,245,000 469,378 5,108,883 2,775,124 2,281,117 ~y
2022 ~ 2026 - - 2,150,000 264,813 1,230,000 ° 126,750 2,491,5% - 6,283,410 6,283,410 F
2027 - 2031 _ - - - - - - 1,907,860 6,867,140 6,867,140 "
2032 - 2036 - - i - - - - 1.455. 580 7,319,420 7.319,420
Total A0000 5608 .S 6485000 5320900 5 4263000 5 20640 5 066450 5 21481605 5 JGXOMEE. -
£
L7
£y
F-38
£
L
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Future debt service requirements (principal and interest) for business-type activities are as follows:

Fiscal Year ending Water Revenue Bonds Sewer Revenue Certificateés of Participation
_June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 210,000 $ 262,442 3 230,000 5 583,379
2008 210,000 256,949 240,000 575,729
2009 220,000 251,196 245,000 567,779
2010 225,000 245,016 255,000 559,604
- 2011 230,000 238,284 265,000 551,129
2012 - 2016 1,280,600 1,068,483 . 1,470,000 2,608,325
2017 - 2021 1,530,000 796,321 1,775,000 2,303,613
2022 - 2026 1,415,000 456,594 - 2,200,000 1,875,500
2027 - 2031 1,405,000 163,688 2,785,000 1,284,625
2032 - 2036 : - - 3,535,000 534,550
Total 20725000 . $ 3738973, _§__ 13.000.000 & 11444233

2005 Sewer System Revenue Certificates of Participation

On May 27, 2005, the City issued Sewer System Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2005 (Certificates) in
the amount of $13,000,000. Proceeds of the Certificates will be used for a) financing certain improvements,
betterments, renovations and expansions of facilities within the Sewer System of the City b) paying capitalized
interest with respect to the Certificates to June 1, 2006, ¢) providing for the deposit of a reserve fund surety bond
and d) paying costs of delivery of the Certificates. The Certificates will mature in the year 2036 and carry interest
rates ranging from 3.00% - 5.00% .

2005 California Statewide Cammunities Development Authority Water Revenue Bonds

On May 1, 2005, the City became a program participant in the California Statewide Communities Development
Authority Water and Wastewater Pooled Financing Program (Program). As a participant in the Program the City
was able to issue California Statewide Communities Development Authority (Authority) Water Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005A (Bonds) in the amount of $5,000,000. Proceeds of the Bonds were used to finance the acquisition and
construction of water and wastewater public capital improvements The Bonds will mature in 2030 and carry
interest rates form 2.5% to 4.5%. The City entered into an Installment Purchase Agreement with the Authority that
provides that all System Revenues are pledged to the payment of the installment payments.

Legal Debt Limit .
As of June 30, 2006, the City’s legal debt limit (15% of valuation subject to taxation) was $534,505,759. Currently,

the City has no debt subject to the debt limit.

Arbitrage
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of tax-exempt

bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of all tax-exempt bond proceeds at an
interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders. Generally, all interest paid to bondhaolders can be
retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported and paid to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS} at
least every five years. During the current year, Municipal Finance Corporation performed calculations of excess
investment earnings on various bonds and financings and at June 30, 2006, the City has no liability.

Conduit Debt _ '
The City has issued a Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond and two Mobile Home Park Revenue Bonds to provid

funds to builders for the construction of a multifamily housing project and two mobile home park projects. The
bonds are payable solely from the revenue collected by the builders of the projects. The City is not obligated in any
manner for repayment of the indebtedness. Accordingly, the liabilities are not reported in the City’s basic financial
statements.




The aggregate principal amount payable for the four series of bonds as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 1995 Senies A (Crossbrooks Apartments) $ 8,715,000

Mobile Home Park Revenue Bonds 2001 Series A (Las Casitas De Sonoma) 4,630,000
Mobile Home Park Revenue Bonds Series 2003A (Rancho Feliz MHP) 12,920,000
Mobile Home Park Revenue Bonds Series 2003B (Rancho Feliz MHP) 3,455,000

Capital Leases
The City has entered into long-term capital lease agreements with various financing agencies to lease public safety

patrol and fire protection vehicles and other equipment. The following is a summary of future minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2006:

Fiscal Year ending
June 30; Principal Interest

2007 ’ § 249,650 3 78,444
2008 ’ 239,037 68,434
2009 227,989 59,838
20010 191,205 51,392
2011 164,625 44,552
2012-16 478,255 152,770
2017-21 476,626 50,762

" Total 3 2097337 3 506192

Payment for capital lease obligations are made from various revenue sources recorded in the General Fund and
transferred to the General Debt Service Fund. At June 30, 2006, equipment under the capital leases of $2,799,710
were included in the statement of net assets. :

8. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN

_ Plan Description — All permanent employees are eligible to participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund
(the Fund) of the State of California’s Public Employees Retirement System (CALPERS). The Fund is an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit plan that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for various local
and state governmental agencies within the State of California. The Fund provides retirement, disability, and death
benefits based on the employee’s years of service, age and final compensation. Employees vest afier five years of
service and may receive retirement benefits at age fifty. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by State statute and City ordinance. Copies of the Fund’s annual financial report may be obtained from
CALPERS’ executive office: 400 P. Street, Sacramento, CA 95814, A separate report for the City’s plan within the
Fund is not available,

Funding, Policy — Public safety employees and all other employees have an obligation to contribute 9% and 7% of
their annual covered salary to the Fund, respectively. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined
rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the Fund’s Board of Administration. The
required employer contribution rates for fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 were 22.128% for public safety employees
and 9.522% for miscellaneous employees of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan
members are established by State statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may he amended by
CalPERS.
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Annual Pension Cost — The City’s annual pension cost for the Fund was equal to the City’s required and actual
contributions, which was determined as part of the June 30, 2005 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal
actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases from 3.25% to 14.45% depending on age, service and type of
employment. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 3%. Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over
a closed period that depends on the plan’s date of entry into CalPERS. Subsequent plan amendments are amortized
as a level percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period. Gains and losses that occur in the operation of the plan are
amortized over a 30 year rolling period, which results in an amortization of about 6% of unamortized gains and
losses each year. The actuarial value of City’s assets was determined using a 15 year smoothed market technique.

Schedule of Employer Contributions (dollar amounts in thousands)

Fiscal Annual Pension Cost Percentage of
Year Ended {APC) APC Contributed
6/30/04 $ 863 100%
6/30/05 1,850 100
6/30/06 2,087 100

9. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. The
City’s memorandum of understanding with its employees establishes the provisions for these post-employment
health care benefits. Substantially all of the City's employees may become eligible for these benefits if they work
for the City at least fen years and they reach normal retirernent age while working for the City. These benefits are
not available unless the retired employee is also receiving benefits from CalPERS. The cost of retiree health care
and life insurance benefits are recognized as expenditures as claims are paid. For 2006, these costs totaled
$723,303. At June 30, 2006, seventy-nine participants were eligible to receive these benefits.

The City has designated a portion of General Fund's fund balance for future retiree health care benefits in the event
that claims cannot be paid from future operations. At June 30, 2006, the General Fund designated fund balance for
retired employee medical insurance was $2,967,500.

" An actuarial valuation of the post-retirement benefit program was performed in 1999. The study determined that the

actuarial accrued liability as of June 30, 1999 was $8,968,000. Based on the tremendous rise in health plan
premiums, an increasing retiree base and Jower interest rates, the City Council commissioned an update of the study.
The results were dramatic, with the unfunded actuarial acerued liability rising to $38.5 million as of July 1, 2003.
Another study was performed July 1, 2005, due to continuous increases in health plan premiums. This study showed
the unfinded actuarial accrued lability jumping to $52.3 million The study indicates that the new annual
contribution required to fund the reserve over a thirty-year period is $4.6 miilion per year. The actuarial
assumptions used were: 1) an interest rate of 4.5%, 2} an inflation rate of 3.5%, 3) a medical increase trend rate
starting at 12.5% and decreasing gradually to an ultimate rate of 5.75%, and 4) demographic assumptions utilized by
CalPERS, modified to reflect anticipated increased life expectancy and Rohnert Park’s lower turnover rates,
Management and the City Council will be developing a plan over future years to pay for this unfunded liability.

10. FUND BALANCE /NET ASSETS

Fund Balance - In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance reserves for amounts that
are not appropriable for expenditure or legally or contractually segregated for a specific future use. Fund balance
designations result from City management or City Council action. Such designations are at the discretion of
management or Council and may be changed by future management or Council action,

Portions of unreserved fund balance may be designated to indicate tentative plans for financial resource utilization in
a future peried, such as for general contingencies or capital projects. Such plans or intent are subject to change,
have not been legally authorized and may not result in expenditures. As of June 30, 2006, unrcserved, designated
fund balances were as follows:
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Fund balance designations for:

General Fund: I
Contingencics ' $ 4,704,232 ~7
Self-insurance 1,121,276 3
Infrastructure o 450,518 oy
Recreational facilities 117,414 5.7
Retired employee medical insurance 2,947,500 { }
Housing programs 456,399 .
Retirement costs/miscellaneous 350,000 <?
Equipment replacement 1,220,791 £
Donatiorss 289.811 ~7

3

Total General Fund £ 1 1!677! 941 p
Nonmajor Governmental Funds: ( ?
Capital projects ' 8 97,521 3

g ’

In government-wide statements equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

PN
N

e Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes,
or other borrowings that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those. assets.
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* Restricted net assets — consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by: 1) external groups
such as creditors, -grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or 2) law through _ P
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

S

o

*  Unrestricted net assets — all other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in

capital assets, net of related debt.” {
11. RISK MANAGEMENT
£y
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and R
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City reports all of its risk management activities in its { 3
General Fund. The City participates in the Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund (REMIF), a joint powers
agency (risk-sharing pool) established in May 1976 to provide an independently managed self-insurance program {3 |
for member cities. The purpose of REMIF is to spread the adverse effect of losses among the member agencies and £y
to purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing its costs. A
‘ 0y
The City’s deductibles and maximum coverage follows: o
L
Excess \ ™
Coverage: Deductible REMIF Coverage , :
£
General liability 5 5,000 $ 500,000 $ 24,500,000 £
Workers® compensation 5,000 1,060,000 Statutory et
Property damage 5,000 25,000 295,000,000 i }
Automobile liability 5,000 10,000 1,425,000 L
Earthquake and flood 25,000 - 25,000,000 _ A
Fidelity - 25,000 2,000,000 a




M

The City contributes its pro-rata share of anticipated losses to a pool administered by REMIF. Should actual losses
among participants be greater than the anticipated losses, the City will be assessed its pro-rata share of that
deficiency. Conversely, if the actual losses are less than anticipated, the City will be refunded its pro-rata share of
the excess. The City paid insurance premiums and deductibles of $1,222,210 and received REMIF refunds of
$250,126 during the year ended June 30, 2006. Settled claims have not exceeded commiercial excess liability
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. .

Claims expenditures and ljabilities are reported for self-insured deductibles when it is probable that a loss has
occurred and the amount of thaf loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that
have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). At June 30, 2006 the amount of these IBNR Habilities was $31,628.
This liability is the City's best estimate based on available information.

. Changes in the reported liability resulied from the following:

Liability at June 30, 2004 $ 81,396
Current year claim deductibles and changes in estimates 111,973
Net payments (79,480)
Liability at June 30, 2005 (reported in accrued liabilities) 113,889
Current year claim deductibles and changes in estimates 188,978
Net payments : {99,161 )
Liability at June 30, 2006 (reported in accrued liabilities) ’ $ 203,706

At June 30, 2006, management designated $1,121,276 of fund balance in the General Fund for future claims
liabilities. ' . ;

12. CONTINGENCIES

The City is also a defendant in several lawsnits arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the City
Attorney and City Management, potential claims against the City resulting from such litigation, not covered by
insurance, would not materially effect the basic financial statements of the City. ‘

On September 13, 2005, the Commission entered into an Affordable Housing and Loan Agreement with Burbank
Housing to develop a 56-unit affordable housing project on a City-owned City Hall Drive site. The Commission
purchased the site from the City and assisted Burbank with the financing and pre-development costs. Burbank
purchased the land from the Commission for $1,335,000 (the amount paid by the Commission to the City for the
property). The term of the loan agreement is a non-recourse loan in the amount of $3,925,000 which will accrue
interest at the rate of 2% per annum and is deferred for 55 years.

On May 23, 2006; the Commission entered into an Affordable Housing and Loan Agreement (*Agreement™) with
Vida Nueva Partners for the development of the Vida Nueva Affordable Housing Project, which includes twenty-
four (24) very-low income permanent supportive housing units (carrying 55-year affordability restrictions), a
community building, laundry facilities, management office and activity and counseling rooms. The Commission
agreed to purchase the site from the City at the appraised value of $1,630,000 over a three-year period beginning in
2006-07. The Agreement provided for the Commission to loan $1,675,000 to Vida Nueva Pariners at an accrued
interest rate of 2% annum, with the principal and accrued interest deferred for 55 years. Vida Nueva Partner will
purchase the site from the Commission for $810,000. The loan and purchase of the site will occur in fiscal year
2006-07.

The Commission intends to purchase the existing City Hall site for the development of affordable housing once City
Hall relocates to its proposed new location. The purchase price is estimated at $1,100,000 and will be paid over a
three year period beginning in fiscal year 2006-07.
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The Commission sct aside $500,000 in its fiscal year 2006-07 FY budget for the redevelopment of the former Y
Agilent Site and is currently working out the terms with Sonoma Mountain Village Business Incubator for the use of P
these funds. (8
13. LEASES =
The City has entered into operating lease contracts with various private and non-profit businesses. The terms of o
these leases range from 5 years to 40 years. LT
)
The future minimum rentals to be received from the aforementioned operating leases as of June 30, 2006 are as \:: |
follows (in thousands) : £
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, “_fj
2007 -8 150 {3
2008 150 .
2009 150 N
FARN
2010 150 3
2011 175 £y
2012 - 2016 900 w7
2017 - 2021 1,025 (3
2022 - 2026 1,150 g
2027 - 2031 1,250 L
2032 - 2033 500 £y
) Ry
Future minimum lease rentals ' 3 5,600 4 '}
O
These future minimum rentals are based upon annual rates agreed to by tenants. In addition to the future minimum /\1
rentals disclosed above, the City expects to receive approximately $172,350 monthly from month-to-month rentals e
in fiscal year 2006-07. Oy
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PERS SCHED F FUNDING PROGRESS - UNAUDITED
hedule of i isceflan Har am i usan
© ®
(B) Unfunded Unfunded
Entry (Overfunded) {Overfunded)
(A) Age Actuarial (D) Actarial Liability
Actuarial Actuarial Actarial Accrued Funded (E) as Percentage of
Valuation Asset Accrued Liability Ratio Covered Covered Payrolf
Date Value Liability {®) - (A [(A} / (B)] Payroll [OIEN
6/30/03 33,911 33,464 3 447 101.34% % 7,532 -5.9%
6/30/04 35,673 37,400 1,727 95.38% 6,796 254%
6/30/05 38,152 40,055 1,903 95.25% 7,129 26.1%
6/30/06 ** information not available **
ch nding | Fi afety Pl mounts i
o (9] 3]
/; B} Unfunded Unfunded
“““ - Entry (Overfunded) (Overfunded)
(A) Age Actuarial o Actuarial Liability
Actuarial Actuaria] Actuarial Accrued Funded {E) as Percentage of
" Valuation Asset Accrued Liability Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value Liability [(B) - (A)] (AY / (BY] " Payroll [(CW(E)]
6/30/03 1,083,690 1,218,083 3 134,393 88.97% % 184,098 73.0%
6/30/04 885,550 996,204 110,654 88.89% 149,408 M4.1%
6/30/05 646,359 742,247 95,888 - 87.08% 115,063 83.3%
6/30/06 ** information not available **

Note: Safety plan is part of a much larger pool. Figures shown above are poo} figures.

F-45




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Real property transfer
Transient cccupancy
Sales and use
Franchises

Licenses, permits and fees:
Business licenses
Animal licenses
Building permits
Plan check

Fines, forfeitures and penalties:
Vehicle code
Parking fines
Impound fees
Other court

Interest and rentals:
Investment earnings
Rent - golf courses
Rent - other

Subtotal

Intergovernmental:
State motor vehicle in-lieu tax
Off-highway motor vehicle license fee
Pablic Safety Avgmentation Fund
Grants
Reimbursements
Other

Subtotal

See note to required supplementary tnformation.

Variance with

\

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budgel B&dget Amount (Negﬂve)
2,782,000 2,782,000 3,127,448 345,448
220,500 220,500 253,584 33,084
1,415,000 1,415,000 1,601,587 186,587
7,355,000 7,355,000 7,386,925 31,925
1,194,000 1,194,000 1,308,839 114,83¢
12,966,500 12,966,500 13,678,383 711,883
500,000 500,000 489,174 (10,826}
55,000 55,000 56,661 1,661
315,000 315,000 265,033 - (49,967)
185,000 185,000 224,053 39,053
1,055,000 1,055,000 1,034,921 (20,079)
60,000 60,000 107,704 47,704
70,000 70,000 68,826 (1,174)
19,000 19,000 26,473 7.473
15,600 15,000 13,365 (1,635)
164,000 164,000 216,368 52,368
900,000 900,000 946,513 46,513
150,000 150,000 - (150,000}
462,708 462,708 596,448 133,740
1,512,708 1,512,708 1,542,961 30,253
2,232,000 2,232,000 2,572,107 340,107
1,000 1,000 650 (350)
220,000 220,000 229,282 9,282
783,000 783,000 221,592 (561,408}
65,000 65,000 24,367 (40,633}
36,000 36,000 36,801 801
3,337,000 3,337,000 3,084,799 (252,201)
(continued)
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

Y REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
j BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with

. Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
: Bud_g_et Budget Amount (N;egative)
{Continued)
REVENUES (Continued)
Charges for current services:
Zoning and subdivision fees 48,750 48,750 341,007 292,257
Sales of maps and lists 1,500 1,500 21,200 19,700
Special public safety services 40,000 40,000 49,700 9,700
Fire inspection fees 10,000 10,000 23,830 13,830
Vehicle abatement revenue 26,000 26,000 32,421 6,421
Animal shelter fees 60,000 60,000 57,690 ’ (2,310)
Engineering fees 150,000 150,000 315,246 165,246
Weed abatement ’ - - - -
General plan maintenance fee 120,000 120,000 49,631 (70,369)
Library ground maintenance ' ) 8,000 8,000 5,922 {2,078)
Recreation: . _ ) o
Recreation centers 781,500 781,500 688,408 (93,092)
Swimming pools - 207,000 207,000 219,343 12,343
Contract classes and other 130,000 130,000 128,099 {1,901)
«a\ : Subtotal 1,582,750 1,582,750 1,932,497 349,747
e Donztions and miscellaneous:
Performing Aris Center 670,600 . 670,600 592,955 (77,645)
RPHFA administration - - - -
Refuse administration 208,965 208,965 256,006 47,131
Donations ' 4,000 4,000 _ 36,645 _ 32,645
Miscellaneous : 107,193 107,193 142,606 35,413
Subtotal ) 890,758 990,758 1,028,302 37,544
Total revenues 21,608,716 21,608,716 22,518,231 909,515
{continued) -

See note to required supplementary information.




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
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(Continued)

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
City Council
City Manager
Finance and accounting
Information Services
Legal services
Planning Department/Commission
Personnel
Rent appeals board
City Office building
City Office annex
General government-nondepartmental
Nondepartmental-employee benefits
Enterprise fund cost allocation
Community Development Commission
cost allocation

Subtotal

Public safety:
Personnel
Police protection
Fire protection
Fire prevention
Animal control
Animal shelter
Civil defense/hazardous materials
Southwest station
Main station
North station
South station
Youth and Family Program

Subtotal

See note to required supplementary information.

o,
(.

Variance with

Final Budget

Original Final Actual Positive »/}

Budget Budget Amount (Negative) -

£ = s

L7

{3

(3

106,334 106,334 105,553 781 )

582,868 582,868 601,218 (18,350)

1,261,765 1,261,765 1,249,838 11,927 3

435,119 435,119 404,368 30,751 i

300,000 300,000 511,063 (211,063) O3
410,327 410,327 290,913 119,414 Ly
276,390 276,390 241,844 34,546 S
109,737 109,737 97,431 12,306 (3

87,900 87,900 106,361 (18,461) {f}z :

64,600 64,600 57,733 6,867 i
1,611,590 1,611,560 1,672,193 (60,603) |
793,084 793,084 723,303 69,781
(1.816,500) {1,816,500) (1,816,500) -
(1,059,200) (1,059,200) (1,059,200) -
3,164,014 3,164,014 3,186,118 (22,104)
*13,083,331 13,083,331 13,435,578 (352,247)
969,055 969,055 . 864,371 74,634
225,860 225,860 224,912 948
- 8,222 (8,222)
294,088 294,088 289,440 4,648

72,960 72,960 80,313 (16,353)

14,000 14,000 14,034 (34)

3,400 3,400 670 2,730 :
312,000 312,000 317,023 (5.023) ‘?ﬁ
51,000 51,000 50,732 268 .
14,000 14,000 6,899 7,101 £
118,169 118,169 111,283 6,886 P

15,157,863 15,157,863 15,442,477 (284,614) ;’;
A

(continued) P
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

N REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
} j BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
{Continued) '
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Current:
Public works:
Engineering 728,369 728,369 472,373 255,996
Inspection 445,980 445,980 408,688 37,301
General ’ 647,936 647,036 720,699 (72,763)
Maintenance of parkways 125,950 125,950 112,819 13,131
Maintenance of streets/bikepaths 476,973 476,973 507,596 (30,623)
Maintenance of school grounds 3,000 3,000 2,125 875
Street lighting ’ 183,200 183,200 156,144 27,056
Traffic signals 100,000 100,000 97,531 2,469
Storm drains and drainage 81,450 81,450 5,736 75,714
Weed abatement 2,500 2,500 : 1,420 1,080
----- Emterprise fund cost allocation (527,500) (527,500) - {527,500} -
Community Development Commission .
cost allocation (115,800) (115,800) . (115,300) -
Subtotal 2,152,067 2,152,067 1,841,831 310,236 .
T, Parks and recreation: '
. Parks 315,720 315,720 306,995 8,725
Parks maintenance-general 534,701 534,701 565,715 (31,014}
Recreation centers 972,992 972,992 953,925 19,067
Swimming pools 355,789 355,789 462,054 (106,265)
Recreation administration and programs . 643,470 643,470 577.537 05,933
Library . 8,500 8,500 9,031 - {53D)
Subtotal 2,831,112 2,831,172 2,875,257 (44,085)
Other:
Performing Aris Center 907,014 907,014 993,088 (86,074)
Bocking fees 210,000 210,000 143,216 606,784
Sexual assault examination fees : 20,000 20,000 12,163 . 1,837
Property tax administration fee 50,000 50,000 33,779 16,221
Subtotal 1,187,014 1,187,014 1,182,246 4,768
Capital outlay 2,061,653 2,061,653 971,804 1,089,849
Subtotal expenditures 26,553,783 26,553,783 25,499,733 1,054,050
{continued)

See note to required supplementary information,




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with

] Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budgel Budget Amount (Negative)
(Continued)
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (4,945,067) (4,945,067) (2,981,502) 1,963,565
. OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the sale of capitaf assets - - 621,704 621,704
Lease proceeds 823,000 823,000 818,624 (4,376
Transfers in 3,078,551 3,078,551 2,364,490 (714,061)
Transfers out (645,722) {645,722} (1,121,488) (475,766)
Total other financing sources (uses) 3,255,829 3,255,829 2,683,330 (572,499
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE _ 3 (1,689,238) (1,689,238) (298,172) 3 1,391,066
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR: © 18,329,002
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 3 18,030,830

See note wo required supplementary information.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK .

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City operates under the general laws of the State of California and annually adopts a budget for its
General Fund to be effective July 1 for the ensuing fiscal year. From the effective date of the budget,

“which is adopted and controlled at the department level, the amounis stated therein as proposed

expenditures become appropriations to the various City departments. The City Council may amend the
budget by resolution during the fiscal year. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. The City
Manager may authorize transfers from one account to another within the same departmcnt All
unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

Annual budgets for the City General Fund, State Gasoline Tax Special Revenue Fund, Traffic Signals Fee
Special Revenue Fund, Capital Outlay. Fee Special Revenue Fund, Public Facilities Finance Fee Special
Revenue Fund, Transportation Equity Act Special Revenue Fund, Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
Special Revenue Fund, Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Special Revenue Fund, Measure M
Traffic Fund, Traffic Congestion Relief (AB2928) Special Revenue Fund, Measure M Fire Benefit
Assessment Special Revenue Fund, Mobile Home Rent Appeals Board Special Revenue Fund, FI1GR
Special Revenue Fund, Copeland Creek Drainage Facility Special Revenue Fund are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America, with the
exception of proceeds from the sale of capital assets, which is treated as revenues on the budgetary basis.
The City prefers to leave its original budget unaltered during the year, unless there are sibstantial changes
to budget forecasts, so that the effectiveness of individual departments in meeting budget objectives can be
evaluated and the adequacy of the budget itself can be judged. Expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts
are allowed by law but must be appraved individually by the City Manager.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments of expenditures
are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of
the budgetary process. No encumbrances were outstanding at June 30, 2006.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK o,
, S
DESCRIPTION OF OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS “}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 '_;3
3

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
To account for revenues derived from specific revenue sources, These funds are required by statute or ordinance to
finance particular functions or activities of government. The various funds and sources are:

State Gasoline Tax Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received pursuant to Street and Highway Code
Sections 2103, 2106, 2107, and 2107.5 and other funds for the purpose of maintenance and construction of
the City streets.

Measure M Streets Fund — From revenues received from County on one quarter cent sales tax for street
improvements. .

Traffic Signals Fee Special Revenue Fund - From revenues received from fees imposed on developers for -
the purpose of constructing traffic signals.

Capital Qutlay Fee Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received from fees imposed on developers for
the purpose of park development, open space, and community facilities such as fire stations, libraries,

Ry

auditoriums, stadinms, etc. ] o
LS

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received from the U.S. £y

Department of Justice for the purpose of reducing crime and improving public safety. A

. fan

£y

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received from the State
of California pursuant to AB 3229 for the purpose of ensuring public safety.

Traffic Congestion Relief (AB 2928) Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received pursuant to g
Assembly Bill 2928 for the purpose of maintenance and reconstruction of streets and roads.

Measure M Fire Benefit Assessment Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received pursuant to the voter L
approved fire benefit assessment district. Puipose is to finance enhancements of fire suppression activities.

A T N S B

Mobile Home Rent Appeals Board Special Revenue Fund ~ From revenues received pursuant to City of
Rohnert Park Ordinance 494 authorizing the collection of registration fees from mobile home parks.
Purpose is to fund the Mobile Home Rent Appeals Board.

o

F.1.G.R. Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received pursuant to the memorandum of agreement with -
the Federated Indians of the Graton Rancheria. The purpose is to fund public safety neighborhood
enforcement.

Copeland Creek Drainage Facility Special Revenue Fund — From revenues received from fees imposed on
developers in a specific area serviced by the Copeland Creek drainage improvements. Purpose is to repay
the costs of the Copeland Creek drainage improvements.

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
To accumulate monies of payment of general long-term obligations, including capital leases and general obligation
bonds.

General Debt Service Fund - To accumulate monies for payment of capital leases. Leases are financed by
various revenues of the General Fund.

Community Development Commission Debt Service Fund — To accumulate monies for payment of Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds, Tax Allocation Bonds, Refunding Certificate of Participation, and other

indebtedness. Financing is provided by a specific annual property tax increment, as well as lease revenues
- received from the City.




NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
To account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition of construction of major capital facilities (other than
those financed by the proprietary fund types.)

Special Assessments Capital Projects Fund — To account for the acquisition of capital facilities financed
form special assessment resources.

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUND
To account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only eamnings, and not principal, may be used
for purposes that support the City’s programs (i.c., for the benefit of the City or its citizenry).

Performing Arts Center Endowment Permanent Fund — To account for capital donated for the City’s
Dorothy Rohnert Sprekels Performing Arts Center. The interest generated from the donations is used for

operating costs of the Performing Arts Center.
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK /Z
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - \)
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS . o
JUNE 30, 2006 i
Special Performing i:} |
Nonmajor Assessments Arts Center
Special Nonmajor Capital Endowment ‘
Revenue Debt Service Prajects Permanent £y
Funds Furds Fund Fund Total s
ASSETS : g’}
Cash and investments $ 4916062 % - $ 97,521 § 1264851 § 6,278,434 o
Receivables: _ iﬁ
Accounts 780,820 780,820 .
Due from other funds - - - i
Restricted cash and investments 1,785,743 1,785,743 7y
Total assets $ 5696882 §$ 1,785,743 $ 97,521 § 1,264,851 & 8,844,997 \'__:\S
\ i
LIABILITIES ) .
Deferred revenue § 683462 3§ - $ - $ - $ 683,462 03
FUND BALANCES e
Reserved for: Y }
Street projects 1,282,579 - - - 1,282,579 N
Debt service - 1,785,743 - - 1,785,743 £y
Performing Arts Center endowment - - - . - 1,264,855 1,264,851 "'J j
Unreserved, reported in: f _:,\
Special revenue funds 3,730,841 - - - 3,730,841 . ‘
Capital project fund - - 97,521 - 97,521 i
Toezl fund balances 5,013,420 1,785,743 97,521 1,264,851 8,161,535 _ D)
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 5,696,882 § 1,785,743 3 97,521 & 1,264,851 § 8,844,997 £ ey
: R
iy
L
(g
oy

F- 54
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2086

Special Performing
Nonmajor Assessment Arts Center Total
Special Nonmgjor Capital Endowment Other
Revenue Debt Service Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes ’ 3 432,50 § - % 201 % - 3 454,640
Intergovernmental 1,271,606 1,271,606
Interest and rentals 71,384 66,213 35,251 172,848
Licenses, permits and fees 761,522 761,522
Donations 625,000 800 625,800
Total revenues 3,182,082 06,213 2,070 36,051 3,286,416
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - -
Debt service: -
Principal - 1,241,222 1,241,222
Imerest and fiscal charges - 470,931 - - 470,931
Total expenditures - 1,712,153 - - 1,712,153
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES 3,182,082 (1,645,940) 2,070 36,051 1,574,263
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,327 1,666,080 - - 1,668,407
Transfers out : {1,757,959) {7,258) (5,000) (535,251) (2,305,468)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,755,632) 1,658,822 (5,000) {535,251) (637,061)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES . 1,426,450 12,882 (2,930) (499,200) 937,202
FUND BALANCES:
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3,586,970 1,772,861 100,451 1,764,051 7,224,333
END OF YEAR $ 5013420 $ 1,785,743 § 97,521 § 1,264,851 § 8,161,535
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK .

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Ed

STATE GASOLINE TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND ) “}

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 k p \\

L9

Variance with -

Final Budget § 4

Original Final Actual Positive T
Budget Budget Amount (Negative}

REVENUES £y
Interest and rentals 5 25000 25000 S 40,08 § 15,086 ; _:’f
Intergovermnmental - \ }

Section 2105, maintenance 267,000 267,000 260,310 (6,690) »
Section 2106, construction 196,000 196,000 187,012 (8,988) 3
Section 2107, maintenance 350,000 350,000 347,182 (2,818) o
Section 2107.5, engineering 6,000 5,000 6,000 - i F
Total revenues 844,000 844,000 840,590 3,410) ' 9

EXPENDITURES oy

Current: . L

. General government 10,700 10,700 - 10,700 7 ;

EXCESS OF REVENUES o
OVER EXPENDITURES 833,300 833,300 840,550 (14,110) i

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) '
Transfers in - . ]
Transfers out (631,000 (631,000} : {6l)7,258) (23,742) \ : ‘
Total other financing sources (uses) (631,000) (631,000) (607,258) (23,742)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 202,300 § 202,300 233,332 §$ (37,852)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR : . 1,049,247

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,282,579 -
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MEASURE M TRAFFIC SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount {Negative)
REVENUES
Licenses, permits and fees: . :
Measure M Streets Allocation . % 212,029 3% 212,029 % 180,519 % (31,5100
Interest and rentals - ) 1,549 1,549
Total revenues ‘ ) 212,029 212,029 182,068 (29,961)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (212,029) (212,029) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - 5 u 182,068 by (29,961) '
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR -
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 182,068




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK ' -~
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE e
TRAFFIC SIGNALS FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)

e N e

3

REVENUES
Licenses, permits and fees:
Traffic signals 3 - 3 - 3 13,387 § 13,387
Interest and rentals - - -

!

o,
Ry

Total revenues - - 13,387 13,387

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (350,000) £350,000) {4,083) 345,915

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 (350,000 § (350,000 9302 % 359,302
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,608,894
F’UP_ID BALANCE, END OF YEAR 5 1,618,196
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL OUTLAY FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2006

_ Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budpet Amaount (Neg_g_alive)
REVENUES
Licenses, permits and fees: 3 - - $ 11,335- % 11,335
Interest and rentals . - - 14,589 14,589
Total revenues - - 25,924 25,924
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) '
Transfers in . -
Transfers out {190,000) {190,000) {59,453) 130,547
Total other financing sources {uses) (190,000) {190,000) (59,453} 130,547
NET CHANGE IN FUUND EALANCE N {190,000) (190,000) (33,529)  § 156,471
" FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR ' 591,077
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 5 " 557,548
L ]




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

PUBLIC FACILITEES FINANCE FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES
Licenses, permits and fees:
Interest and rentals
Total revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

TFransfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END-OF YEAR

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget " Amount {Negative)
3 596,630 . $ 596,630 $ 736,800 $ 140,170
- - 11,147 11,147
596,630 596,630 747,947 151,317
(470,000 (470,000} - 470,000
(470,000) (470,000) - 470,000
$ 126,630 $ 126,630 747,947 $ 621,317
182,742
$ 930,689
F-62
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Bud_g_et Budget Amount (Negative}
REVENUES
Interest and rentals $ - - 1,877 % 1,877
Intergovernmental 100,000 100,000 100,000 -
Total revenues 101,877 1,877
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out {100,000} (100,000) (101,877) {1,877)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - 5 -
. S ——




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TRAFFIC CONGESTION RELIEF (AB2928) SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES
Interest and rentals
Intergovernmental

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Actual Positive
Budget Amount (Negative)
$ - $ 2,136 $ 2,136
190,583 150,583
$ - e 3§ 192,719

$ 192,719
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MEASURE M FIRE BENEFIT ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budpet Budget Amount (Ne‘g_gﬁve)
REVENUES
Measure M assessments $ 440,000 $ 440,000 § 452,570  § 12,570
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out {440,000) (440,000) (458,553) (18,553)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - ¥ - 5,983 % (5,983)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR : 22,471
" FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 16,488
p—




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MOBILE HOME RENT APPEALS BOARD SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount " {Negative)
REVENUES
Licenses, permits and fees: $ 22393 % 22,393 § - $ (22,393)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,327 2,327
Transfers out (864) (864)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 22,393 3 22,393 1,463 3 23,856
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 55,629
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 57,092
S
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
F.I.G.R. FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 206

Variance with

Final Budget
Originat Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Ameunt (Negative)
REVENUES
Donations 3 572,000 $ 572,000 % 625000 § - 53,000
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ]
Transfers out (572,000% (572,000) (525,869 46,131
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE % - 3 - 99,131 § 46,131
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 61,795
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 3 160,926




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COPELAND CREEK DRAINAGE FACILITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
- REVENUES
Licenses, permits and fees: $ - $ - 3 - -
Interest and rentals - - - -
' Total revenues - - - -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - B
Transfers out - -
Total other financing sources (uses)
Total other financing sourc - - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - $ - - -
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,115
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 15,115
F-68
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CIiTY OF ROHNERT PARK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CBANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Community
Development
Debt General
Service Debt
Fund Service Totals
REVENUES
Interest and rentals 3 63,280 % 2,933 § 66,213
EXPENDITURES
Debt service: ] .
Principal 965,000 276,222 1,241,222
Interest and fiscal charges 393,617 77,314 470,931
Total expenditures . 1,358,617 353,536 1,712,153
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES )
UNDER EXPENDITURES (1,295,337) {350,603) (1,645,940)
OTHER FINARCING SOURCES (USES) . )
Transfers in 1,308,219 337,861 1,666,080
Transfers out - (7,258) (7,258)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,308,219 350,603 1,658,822
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 12,882 - 12,882
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,772.8'6] - 1,772,861
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR % 1,785,743 § . - $ 1,785,743




CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
General Capital Assets - By Sources

June 30, 2006
CITY CDA TOTAL
GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS: | )
Land , Structures & Improvements 84,684,852 24,625,697 109,310,549
Equipment 12,213,193 840,165 13,053,358
Construction in progress 5,551,260 903,622 6,454,882
TOTAL GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS 102,449,305 26,369,484 128,818,789
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS FROM:
Capital projects fund: '
General obligation bonds 151,689 151,689
Tax aliocation bonds 19,069,043 19,069,043
Certificates of Participation 0
Special Assessments 17,710,774 17,710,774
Federal grants 3,920,200 3,820,200
State grants 2,074,632 2,074,632
County grants 753,429 753,429
Revenues from other agencies 182,271 1,840,441 2,022,712
Revenues:
Loans from city general fund to CDA 5,460,000 5,460,000
General Fund 35,805,318 35,805,318
Special revenue fund 36,374,719 36,374,719
Donations 4,200,328 4,200,328
Assets acquired prior to July 1, 1966 1,275,945 1,275,945
102,449,305 26,369,484 128,818,789
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CITY OF ROHNERT PARK
GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTIONS AND ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2006

GENERAL GENERAL
CAPITAL ASSETS CAPITAL ASSETS
6/30/05 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS Transfers 6/30/06

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Control:

Legistative 5,946 1,065 5,014 ~162 1,835

Executive 47,784 1,079 46,705
Total Control : 53,730 1,065 6,093 -162 48,540
Staff Agencies: )

Rent Appeals Board 770 770

Finance 36,070 . 2,806 33,264

Law 0 0

Planning 146,286 1,804 17,326 130,764

Administrative Services 222,330 1,206 T 6,103 217,433

General Govermnment Building 340,229 17,754 548,955 871,430

Community Promotion 3,602,972 918,042 199 2,685,129
Total Stafil Agencies 4,348,657 3,0107 962,031 549,154 3,938,790
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,402,387 4,074 068,123 548,982 3,987,330
PUBLIC SAFETY: ) )
Police Protection 14,435,909 504,522 263,325 -37 14,677,069
Fire Protection ' 2,342,466 448145 48,095 2,742 516
Total Public Safety 16,778,375 852 667 311,419 -37 17,419,585
HIGHWAYS 58,926,221 3,607 80,160 728,761 59,678,428
LIBRARIES 8,148,435 34,746 8,113,689
RECREATION 33,375,881 9,234 128,018 777 33,264,874
TOTAL GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS

ALLOCATED TO FUNCTION ) 121,631,299 969,582 1,522,468 1,285,493 122,363,807
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 3,280,232 4,460,143 -1,285,493 6,454,882
TOTAL GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS 124,911,531 5,429,726 1,522,468 0 128,818,789




CITY OF ROMNERT PARK
General Capital Assets - By Functions and Activities

S e

June 30, 2006
Land Land Land
Structure &  Structure &  Structure & .
Improve. Improve. fmprove. Total

CLASSIFICATION City-810/610 CDA-930 Total Equipment Cost
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Control:

Legislative 0 0 1] 1,835 1,835

Executive 0 0 0] 46,705 46,705
Total Control 0 0 0 48,540 48,540
Staff Agencies:

Rent Appeals Board 0 770 770

Finance 0 33,264 33,264

Law 0 0 4]

Planning 15,257 . 15,257 115,507 130,764

Administrative Services 8,995 8,995 208,438 217,433

Gen. Govt Building 688,612 688,812 182,619 871,430

Community Promotion 390,000 1,995,945 2,385,945 299,184 - 2,685,129
Total Staff Agencies ' 1,103,063 © 1,995,045 3,099,008 839,782 3,938,790
Total General Government 1,103,063 - 1,895,945 3,099,008 888,321 3,987,330
PUBLIC SAFETY:

. Police Protection 7,406,348 1,345,669 8,752,017 5,925,062 ~ 14,677,069
Fire Protection 2,742,516 2,742,516
Total Public Safety 7,406,348 1,345,669 8,752,017 8,667,568 17,41 9,585
HIGHWAYS 54,333,716 3,726,501 - 58,060,217 1,518,211 59,578,428
LIBRARIES 2,396 8,111,293 8,113,689 0 8,113,689
RECREATION 21,839,329 9,446,288 31,285,617 1,979,258 33,264,875
TOTAL GEN CAPITAL ASSETS

ALLOCATED TO FUNCTION 84,684,852 24,625,696 109,310,548 13,053,358 122,363,907
CONSTRUCTION IN PROG. 6,454,882
TOTAL GEN CAPITAL ASSETS 128,818,789
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Statistical Section

This part of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
\information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about
the City's overall financial health. ‘

Contents

Financial Trends

~ how the city's financial performance and wel!—beihg have changed over
time.

...... | ARevenue Capacity

affecting the city's ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
‘ These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

'~ Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the city's financial
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with

Operating Information

These schedules contain information about the city’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the cily's financial
information relates to the services the cify provides and the activities it
performs. '

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors

Page

S$-1

S-4

S-18

- §-23

$-26




A s e

s e e e

This page is intentionally left blank,



p—

[
p—

City of Rohnert Park

Net Assets by Component,
Last Five Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricled

Total business-type activilies net assels

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Reslricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assels

Note: The city began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Slatement 34

in fiscal year 2002.

Source: City Finance Depariment

Fiscal Year

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
28,626,241 $ 30,487,238 24,399,786 25,838,048 31,477,114

5,955,759 8,551,078 8,569,188 8,351,086 9,562,972
28,747,308 23,317,496 33,121,656 26,564,128 18,130,605
63,329,808 $ 62,355,812 $ 66,080,630 60,753,262 59,170,691
14,867,127 & 16,741,255 % 9,464,157 §,886,376 8,977,397
11,641,400 7,886,726 15,200,557 13,044,521 12,245,744
26,508,527 § 24,627,981 § 24,664,714 22,030,897 21,223,141
43,493,368 § 47,228,493 33,863,943 34,824,424 40,454,511

5,955,758 8,551,078 8,569,188 8,351,086 9,562,972
40,389,208 31,204,222 48,322,213 39,608,649 30,376,349
80,838,335 § 86,983,793 $ 90,755,344 82,784,159 . 80,393,832




City of Rohnert Park
Changes in Net Assets, Last Five Fiscal Years
(acerual basis of accounting)

Expenses
Govemmental activilies:

General government

Public Salety

Public Works

Parks and recreation

Other

Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental aclivities expenses
Business-type activities:

Waler

Sewer

Refuse Callection
Total business-type aclivities expenses
Total primary govemment expenses

Program Revenues
Govemnmental activities:
- Charges for services:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Other
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total govemmental activities program revenues
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Water
Sewer
Refuse Collection
Operating grants and contributions
" Capital grants and conlributions
Tatal business-type activities program reverues
Total primary govemment program revenues

-Fiscal Year
2006 2003 2004 2003 2002
$ 11,455,704 11,762,224 8,280,697 7,602,265 7.479,018
16,703,386 15,087,248 13,459,313 12,098,684 11,719,180
4,220,758 4,408,673 4,369470 © 4,585,522 4,563,848 -

4,167,196 3,968,774 3.834,955 4,007,338 4,025,817
1,504,207 1,411,055 1,043,298 1,129,467 1,072,704
2,038,944 2,060,965 1,991,137 2,014,607 2,738,905
40,080,195 38,658,939 32,978 870 31,527,877 31,618.472
6.454.568 5,650,082 5,593,980 4,543407 4,370,136
9.697.231 8,851,372 7,465,887 8,628,125 8,837.099
4.548.674 4,321,260 3,505,939 4,106,036 3,701,253
20,700,473 18,822,724 16,565,806 17,277,568 16,608,488

] 60,790,868 § 57521663 § 49,544,676 $ 48805445 §  48,527.960
$ 1,476,260 $ 539,150 § 341,098 3 107,932 $ 220,042
450,057 508,709 1,240,792 478,730 413,473

2,542,293 2,316,181 1,522,550 1,096,429 953,483
1,640,881 1,267,849 1,181,314 1,321,204 1,226,166

1429 - - 100,388 133,839
2,719,200 2,234,947 3,286,244 3,369,440 3,150,589
546,563 514,534 714,584 702.025 283,889
9,376,683 7,401,370 8.286,502 7,176,146 6,381.491
6,406,197 4,933,151 4,622,425 4,877,155 3,248,895
8,955,355 8,402,521 7.474,704 7,013,757 6,559,543
4,723,623 3,919,872 3,722,449 3,862,580 4024527

- - - 1,508,893 -

1,186,735 1,028,338 3,348,132 504,589 395,165
22,271,910 18,283,882 19,167,710 17,566,974 14,228,130

3 31,648,593 § 25685252 5 27454302 $ 24743120 ° $ 20609621




City of Rohnert Park
Changes in Net Assets, Last Five Fiscal Years (Continued]
(accrual basis of agcounting)

Fiscal Year
200§ 2005 2004 2003 2002
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Govemmental activilies $ 30,713,512 $ 31,297,569 $ 24,692,278 $ 24351,731 § 25,237,981
Business-type activities (1.571.437) 538,842 {2,601,504) (289.4086) 2,680,358
Total primary government net expense $ 29,142,075 $ 31836411 § 22090.374 $ 24062325 § 27,918,339
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Govemmental activities:
Taxes
Property taxes $ 15,504,905 § 13,810,490 % 12,900,727 % 10415445 $ 10,265,292
Franchise taxes 1,308,839 1,263,721 1,725,402 1,073,224 1,051,411
Sales taxes 7,386,925 6,953,294 6,834,708 6,088,866 5,982,666
Motor vehicle license fees 2,572,107 2,804,619 1,968,325 2,436,209 2,379,893
Cther taxes 1,855,821 931,074 1,776,800 2,311,692 1,604,401
Rental Income - - 803,898 448,626 592,042
‘Investment eamings - 1,671,623 1,064,234 1,126,080 1.406,240 2,018,288
Gain on sale of capital assets 1,109,814 974,079 2,779.073 326,535 5,992,368
Transfers 277,474 {238,760) 114,633 306,350 151,989
Total govemmental activilies 31,667,508 27,562,751 30,029,646 24,813,187 30,038,401
Business-type aclivities: . .
Investment eamings 586,563 263,349 146,546 206,350 365,973
Transfers (277474) 238,760 (114,633) (306.350) (151,989)
Total business-type aclivities 309,108 902,109 31,913 {100,000) - 213,984
Total primary government $ 31,996,617 S 28,064860 $ 30,061,559 3§ 24713187 $§ 30,252,385
Change in Net Assets
Govemmental activities $ 97355 % (3,734,818) % 5,337,366 § 461,456 § 4,800,420
Business-type activilies 1,880,546 {36,733) 2,633,617 189.406 (2.466,374)
Total primary government $ 2,854 542 % (3771551} $ 7071185 § 650,862 % 2,334 046

. Source: City Finance Department

. Notes: The city began to report accrual information when it implemented GASS Statement 34 in fiscal year 2002,
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City of Rohnert Park

Program Revenues by Function/Program,
Last Five Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
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Program Revenues

N N
ez

2006 2005 - 2004 2003 2002
Function/Program
Governmental activities: oy
General governmert $ 2,683,313 $ 2710589 § 2667970 § 3111,005 § 2,328,346 s
Public safety 729,783 727,990 1,448,729 - - 677,196 786,050 \’ }
Public works 3,412,799 2,461,662 1,632,181 1,303,664 1,087,046 e
Farks and recreation 1,655,338 1,287,849 1,181,314 1,321,204 1,276,166 }
Other 895,450 213,280 1,356,398 763,077 903,883 P
Subtotal governmental activities 9,376,683 7,401,370 8,286,592 7,176,146 6,381,4N LS
Business-lype activities: ’ i }
Water 6,530,394 5,187,983 4,987,705 6,347,016 3,534,404 P
Wastewater - 11,017,893 9,176,027 10,457,556 7,357,378 6,669,199 iJ
Refuse 4,723,623 3,919,872 3,722,449 3,862,580 4,024,527 Yy
Subtotal business-type activilies 22,271,910 18,283,882 19,167,710 17,566,974 14,228,130 AT .3
£y
Totat primary government $ 31,648,593 $§ 25685252 § 27454302 § 24743120 $ 20,609,621 L
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City of Rohnert Park

Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

[
Real

Fiscal a b Property

Year Property Sales & Use Occupancy Franchise Transfer Total

1997 $ 1861662 $ 41440917 § 999,907 $ 474789 § 146347 § 7,627,622

1998 1,912,680 4,795,502 1,132,168 519,802 212,668 8,572,820

1999 1,953,084 5,591,943 1,200,823 504,608 253,750 9,594,108

2000 2,072,921 5,601,413 1,300,239 560,643 253,086 9,788,302

2001 2,109,747 6,332,766 1,664,211 840,710 319,352 11,266,786
- 2002 2,293,881 5,077,738 1,339,175 1,051,411 257,774 10,919,979

2003 2,426,786 - 6,088,867 1,363,690 1,073,224 352,817 11,305,384

2004 2,517,925 6,834,708 1,367,259 1,725,403 265,430 12,710,725

2005 2,739,642 6,953,204 1,451,781 1,263,721 250,421 12,658,859

2006 3,127,448 7,386,925 1,601,587 1,308,839 253,584 13,678,383
Change

1997-20086 68.0% 78.2% 60.2% 175.7% 73.3% 79.3%
Notes:

¥ The transient occupancy tax rate was increased from 11% lo 12% on Jamuary 1, 2003

® In FY 2004, the CHy received a large payment from Empire Waste Management for underpayment of i
prior year franchise fees

¢ The real property transfer tax rate was reduced from $1.10/$1,000 value of assessed property to the
appropriate rate of $0.55/$1,000in FY 2002 ‘ ‘ I
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City of Rohnert Park

Direct and Overiapping Property Tax Rates,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{rate per §1,000 of assessed value)

Overlapping Rates ®

City Rohnert Park Santa Santa
: Total Cotati Warm Rosa Rosa Bellvue
Fiscal Direct School Spring Junior Righ School
Year Rate District Dam College School District
1997 ‘$ 1.00 $ 0.11  $ 0.007 3% 0.025 00300 § 0.025
1998 1.00 0.11 0.007 0.025 0.0300 0.025
1989 1.00 0.11 0.007 0.025 0.0300 0.025
2000 1.00 0.41 0.007 0.025 0.0300 0.025
2001 1.00 0.11 0.007 0.025 0.0300 0.025
2002 1.00 0.11 0.607 0.025 0.0542 0.025
2003 1.00 0.11 0.007 0.025 0.0542 0.025
2004 1.00 0.11 0.007 0.025 0.0542 0.025
2005 1.00 .11 0.007 0.025 0.0542' 0.025
2006 1,00 0.11 0.007 0.025 0.0542. 0.025

Source: Sonoma County Auditor-Controller, Tax Collector

Notes:

® Qverlapping rales are those of local and county goverru‘rients that abply to property owners
within the City of Rohneri Park. Not all overlapping rates apply 1o all Rohnert Park praperty
owners. -
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City of Rohnert Park
Principal Property Taxpayers,
Current Year and Prior Year

2006 2005
Percentage Percentage
of Total City ] of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Sonoma Green LLC § 75,795,414 1 2.13% $ 93,160,890 1 2.82%
Rohnert Park Ridge L1L.C 41,520,846 2 1.17 40,078,392 2 1.21
Knickerbocker Properties, Inc. 24,534,496 3 0.69 24,079,653 3 0.73
Crossbrook Apartments 23,105,472 4 0.65 22,654,197 5 0.68
‘Santa Rosa Press Democrat 22,141,758 5 0.62 - 22,869,328 4 0.69
State Farm Mutual Aulo insur. 21,287,225 6 0.60 20,940,065 7 0.83
Cosfco Wholesale Corp . 20,294,835 7 0.57 20,068,544 8 0.61
RLH Partnership 18,000,000 8 0.51 —
Gi Realty Trust 1997 16,534,623 9 0.46 16,210,416 g 0.49
Millennium Housing Corporation 15,296,520 10 0.43 15,912,847 10 0.48
DoubleTree Hotel —_ 21,470,512 6 0.65
Total $ 278,511,189 5.71% $ 297,444,844 . 6.20%

Source: Sonoma Courty Tax Collector Metroscan database
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City of Rohnert Park )
Property Tax Levies and Collections, Y
Last Ten Fiscal Years e
£,
Fiscal Collected within the ‘ 1
Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy - Collections Total Collections to Date .
Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage i
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy :}
1997 $ 1,837,898 § 1,824,2% 99.26% % 13,603 §& 1,837,899 100.0% \m;
1998 1,881,393 1,865,496 99.16% 15,897 1,881,393 100.0% P
1999 1,922,145 1,881,670 97.88% 40,475 1,922,145 100.0% LA
2000 1,985,000 1,975,045 99.50% 9,760 1,084,805 99.99% £
2001 2,049,232 2,046,938 99.89% 2,001 2,048,939 © 98.99% \ /
2002 2,099,148 2,093,456 99.73% ' 5,318 2,098,774 99.98% - \ 3
2003 2,298,857 2,291,796 99.69% 6,459- 2,298,255 99.97% o
2004 - 2,303,177 2,295,714 99.68% 5,738 | 2,301,452 99.93% L
2005 2,747,507 2,739,642 99.71% - 2,739,642 99.71% 0y

2006 3,127,448 3,113,048 99.54% - 3,113,048 99.54% \A—_‘" |
Sources: . Sonoma Counly Auditor-Controiler - \}
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City of Rohnert Park
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates, 4
Last Ten Fiscal Years : s
City | S
Fiscal Direct Sonoma £
Year Rate County State ) w7
1997 1.00% 0.25% 6.00% j
1998 1.00% 0.25% 6.00% €5
1998 1.00% 0.25% 6.00% : o
2000 1.00% 0.25% 6.00% LS
2001 1.00% 0.25% 6.00% ‘ 0
2002 1.00% 0.25% 5.75% o
2003 1.00% 0.25% 6.00% _ Oy
2004 1.00% 0.25% 6.00% C
2005 0.75% 0.50% 6.25% _ L
2006 0.75% 0.50% 6.25% -
)
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City of Rehnert Park
Principal Sales Tax Remitters,
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

200645

200413

TSRESS e

2003 /2

101 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK SALES 101 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK SALES 101 INTERNATIONAE TRUCK SALES 101 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK SALES
BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY
CASTINO RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY  [CASTINO RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY  |CASTING RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY  |CASTING RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY
CHEVROMN SERVICE STATIONS CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS
COSTCO WHOLESALE COSTCO WHOLESALE COSTCO WHOLESALE COSTCO WHOLESALE

EXXON SERVICE STATIONS EXXON SERVICE STATIONS EXXON SERVIGE STATIONS FCOOD MAXX

FOOD MAXX FOQOD MAXX i FOOD MAXX HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL
GOODE PRINTING & MAILING GOODE PRINTING & MAILING HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL HOME DEPOT

HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL HOME DEPQT J.EHIGGING LUMBER COMPANY
HOME DEPOT HOME DEPQOT J.E.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY LEVITZ FURNITURE

J.E.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY JLE.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY LINENS N THINGS LINENS N THINGS

LINENS N THINGS LINENS N THINGS MCPHAIL'S APPLIANCES MCPHAIL'S APPLIANCES
MCPHAIL'S APPLIANCES MCPHAIL'S APPLIANCES NORTRAXY WEST NORTRAX WEST

OFFICE DEPOT CQFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT

PAPE MACHINERY PAPE MACHINERY PETSMART PETSMART

PETSMART PETSMART RALEY"S SUPERMARKET RALEY'S SUPERMARKET

RALEY'S SUPERMARKET RALEY'S SUPERMARKET ROSS STORES ROSS STORES

ROSS STORES ROSS STORES ROTTEN ROBBIE SERVICE STATIONS  [ROTTEN ROBBIE SERVICE STATIONS
SAFEWAY STORES SAFEWAY STORES SAFEWAY STORES SAFEWAY STORES

SHELL SERVICE STATIONS SHELL SERVICE STATIONS SHELL SERVICE STATIONS SHELL SERVICE STATIONS
TARGET STORES TARGET STORES TARGET STORES TARGET STORES

UNITED FURNITURE UINITED FURNITURE UNITED FURNITURE UNITED FURNITURE
W.W.GRAINGER W.W.GRAINGER W.W.GRAINGER W.W.GRAINGER

WAL MART STORES WAL MART STORES WAL MART STORES WAL MART STORES

{0'DELL PRINTING COMPANY 'YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER 'YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER

Source: MBIA sales tax consuliants

Nole: Sates Tax paid is confidential information and cannot be reported
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City of Rohnert Park
‘Principal Sales Tax Remitters,

Current Year and Nine Years Ago (Continued)

2002 ¢1

SINESSINAME
107 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK SALES
BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY
CASTING RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY
CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS
COSTCO WHOLESALE
FOCD 4 LESS -
HERTZ BIG 4 RENTS
HOME DEPOT
J.E.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY
LEVITZ FURNITURE
LINENS N THINGS
LONGS DRUG STORES
|McPHAILS APPLIANCES
NEXT LEVEL COMMUNICATIONS
NORTRAX WEST
OFFICE DEPOT
RALEY'S SUPERMARKET
ROSS STORES
SAEEWAY STORES
SHELL SERVICE STATIONS
TARGET STORES
UNITED FURNITURE
W.W.GRAINGER
WAL MART STORES
YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER

200110
SINESSINAM

101 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK SALES

BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY

CASTING RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY

CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS

EXXON SERVICE STATIONS

FOOD 4 LESS

HANSEL FORD

HERTZ BIG 4 RENTS

HOME DEFOT

J.E.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY

LEVITZ FURNITURE

LINENS N THINGS

MCPHAIL'S APPLIANCES

NORTRAX WEST

OFFICE DEFGT

RALEY'S SUPERMARKET

ROSS STORES

ROTTEN ROBBIE SERVICE STATIONS

'SAFEWAY STORES

SHELL SERVICE STATIONS

TARGET STORES

UNITED FURNITURE

W.W.GRAINGER

WAL MART STORES

AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES
BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY
CASTINO RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPFPLY
CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS
DOUBLETREE HOTEL

HERTZ BIG 4 RENTS

HOME DEPOT .
J.E.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY
LINENS N THINGS

{MCPHAL'S APPLIANCES

NEXT LEVEL COMMURICATIONS
NORTRAX WEST

OFFICE DEPOT

RALEY'S SUPERMARKET

ROSS STORES

ROTTEN ROBBIE SERVICE STATIONS
SAFEWAY STORES

SEARS HOMELIFE FURNITURE STORE
SHELL SERVICE STATIONS ~ -
TARGET $STORES

UNITED FURNITURE

W.W.GRAINGER

WAL MART STORES

YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER

YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER
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City of Rohnert Park
Principal Sales Tax Ramitters,

Current Year and Nine Years Ago (Continued)

1999 /98

SN AMESRS
101 INTERMNATIONAL TRUCK SALES
BURLINGTON COAT FACTORY
CASTINO RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY
CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS
HERTZ BIG 4 RENTS
HEWLETT-PACKARD
HOME DEPCT
J.E.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY
LEVITZ FURNITURE
LINENS N THINGS
LONGS DRUG STORES
JMCPHAIL'S APPLIANCES
NEXT LEVEL COMMUNICATIONS
NORTRAX WEST
OFFICE DEPQT
RALEY'S SUPERMARKET
ROSS STORES
ROTTEN ROEBIE SERVICE STATIONS
SAFEWAY STORES
SHELL SERVICE STATIONS
[ TARGET STORES
UNITED FURNITURE
W.W.GRAINGER

" {WAL MART STORES

1998 /1 97
131 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK SALES
CASTINO RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY
CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS
FOOD 4 LESS
HERTZ BIG 4 RENTS
HEWLETT-PACKARD
HOME DEPOQT
J.E.HIGGINS LUMBER COMPANY
LEVITZ FURNITURE
LINENS N THINGS
LONGS DRUG STORES
NEXT LEVEL COMMUNICATIONS
NORTRAX WEST
O'DELL PRINTING COMPANY
OFFICE DEPOT
PETSMART
RALEY'S SUPERMARKET
ROSS STORES
SAFEWAY STORES
SEARS HOMELIFE FURNITURE STORE
[ TARGET STORES
UNITED FURNITURE
W.W.GRAINGER
WAL MART STORES

1997/ 96

CASTINO RESTRNT EQPMNT SUPPLY
CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS
DOUBLETREE HOTEL

EXXON SERVICE STATIONS
FOOD 4 LESS

HERTZ BIG 4 RENTS
HEWLETT-PACKARD

HOME DEPOT

HOME EXPRESS

LEVITZ FURNITURE

LONGS DRUG STORES

NEXT LEVEL COMMUNICATIONS
NORTRAX WEST

OFFICE DEPOT

PETSMART

RALEY'S SUPERMARKET
ROSS STORES

SAFEWAY STORES

SHELL SERVICE STATIONS
TARGET STORES

UNITED FURNITURE
W.W.GRAINGER

WAL MART STORES
YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER

YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER

YARDBIRDS HOME CENTER
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City of Rohnert Park

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{dollars in thousands, except per capita)

General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Fiscal Redevelopment Value of Per
Year Bonds Total Property Capita
1997 $ 11,620 $ 11,620 0.59% $ 302.82
1998 11,240 11,240 0.5495 284.08
1999 22,772 22,772 1.1040 568.84
2000 23,557 - 23,557 1.0724 589.63
2001 23,462 23,462 0.9984 555.50
2002 23,649 23,649 0.9930 554.49
2003 23,444 23,444 0.8123 555.57
2004 23,347 23,347 0.7528 554.21
2005 23,244 23,244 0.7024 547.63
2006 23,082 23,082 0.6478 536.45

Notes: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financia statements.




City of Rohnert Park
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2006

Governmental Unit
Debt repaid with property taxes

Cotati-Rohnert Park Unified Schoo! District

Other debt
Subtotal, overlapping debt

City direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Source: Soncma County Tax Collector

Estimated
Share of
Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping
0utstanding_ Applicable Debt
§71,707,070 83.450% 59,839,201
58,839,201

3 59,839,201

Notes: Overiapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, wilh the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule
estimates the portion of the outstanding debi of those overlapping govemments that is bome by the residents and businesses of
Rohnert Park This process recognizes thal, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt
burden bome by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every laxpayeris a
resident—and lherefore responsible for repaying the debt—of each overlapping govemment.
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City of Rohnert Park
Demographic and Economic Statistics,
Last Ten Calendar Years

Sources: Personal Income information provided by U.8. Department of Commerce, Bureau of
Economic Analysis. Median Age information provided by U.S. Census Bureau, American
Community Survey, Unemployment information provided by State of California Employment
Development Department. School Enrollment information provided by Colati-Rohrert Park
Schoal District. Population infermation provided by State Department of Finance.

Note: Personal Income is reporied at a County-wide level. Local information is not available.

Personal Per
Income Capita
. Calendar (thousands Personal Median School Unempioyment

Year Population of dollars) Income Age Enroliment Rate
1997 38,372 $ 1,118,582 $ 29,151 not available 7.711 4.6%
1998 39,567 1,225,350 30,969  not available 7,983 3.8%
1999 40,032 1,280,271 32,231 38.4 7,756 3.2%
2000 39,952 1,455,771 36,438 355 8,033 3.1%
2001 42,236 1,539,207 36,443 357 7.829 3.3%
2002 42,650 1,553,612 36,427 359 7,836 4.7%
2003 42,198 1,654,743 36,844 36 7,678 4.8%
2004 42,127 1,638,782 38,901 389 7,482 5.3%
2005 42,445 not available net available - 388 7,260 4.1%
2006 43,027 not available not available I1.5est 6,816 3.9%




City of Rohnert Park
Principal Employers,
Current Year

Employer

Sonoma State Universily
State Farm tnsurance
Wal-Mart

Cross Check

Target

Costco

City of Rohnert Park
Home Depot

Parker Hannifin Corp
Alvarado Street Bakery

Total

Source: Chamber of Commerce for top employers and www.epodunk.com for total employment

Note: Data not available for prior years
Total number of jobs in Rohnert Park =

10,752

2006

Percentage

of Total City

Employees Rank Employment
1.532 1 14.25%
625 2 5.81%
600 3 5.58%
285 4 2.65%
210 5 1.95%
190 6 1.77%
182 7 1.68%
160 8 1.48%
137 9 1.27%
116 10 1.08%
4,217 37.55%
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City of Rohnert Park
Full-time-Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program,
Last Ten Fiscal Years,

Full-time-Equivalent Employees as of June 30

Total 164 173 178 188 187 189 187 166 178

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2605 2006
Funection/Program
General government
City Manager's Office 4 5 5 6 6 6 6 4 § 5
Finance 12 12 12 13 12 12 11 10 11 12
Information Systemns 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Planning 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 3
Human Resource 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 2 2 2
Cther 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 1 2 2
Public Safety )
Officers ° 56 61 63 67 67 70 70 70 76 77
Civiliang 32 33 33 33 33 31 31 30 30 30
Building Inspection 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 2 2 3
Public Works
Engineering ® , 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 4 5
Public Works 23 23 24 28 28 28 27 23 25 25
Park Maintenance 9 9 9 9 9 8 9 7 6 5
Parks and recreation 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 7 7 7
Performing Arts Center 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 4 4
182

Source: City Budget Office.
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